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1. About Darlington PCT 
 
Darlington PCT worked with County Durham PCT to commission healthcare for 
600,000 residents living in County Durham and Darlington. 
 
They were one of 12 primary care organisations (PCO) in the North East, organised 
for several years into four PCO clusters. They worked with the North East Strategic 
Health Authority, which was their link to the Department of Health.  
 
Darlington PCT worked closely with providers of healthcare and health services; 
these included GPs, dentists, pharmacists and optometrists, County Durham and 
Darlington NHS Foundation Trust, Tees Esk and Wear Valley NHS Foundation Trust 
and North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust. They also worked closely 
with Durham County Council, Darlington Borough Council and the community and 
voluntary sector in County Durham and Darlington. 
 
This annual report and financial accounts is the last to be published by Darlington 
PCT. For future information for NHS commissioning information for Darlington post 
April 1 2013, please go to: 
 
www.darlingtonccg.nhs.uk 
 
or seek information from the Durham, Darlington and Tees Area Team of the NHS 
Commissioning Board. 
 
For information on public health, visit www.darlington.gov.uk 
 
 
2.  Welcome to the annual report for 2012/13   
 
Welcome to the Darlington Primary Care Trust 2012/13 annual report.  This 
incorporates the operating and financial review for the period 1 April 2012 to 31 
March 2013. Details on budget and financial management can be found in the 
Annual Accounts.  
 
During this year the PCT saw the continuation of a period of intense transition and 
change for the NHS.  
 
Following the publication of the national NHS White Paper and the Health and Social 
Care Bill 2011, the PCT also focused on ensuring that appropriate clinical leadership 
was in place across County Durham and Darlington as they supported GP 
colleagues as clinical commissioners of the future. 
 
This also signalled a fundamental shift for NHS commissioning with the abolition of 
PCTs, the establishment of clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) and the transfer of 
PCT public health improvement responsibilities to local authorities, from 1 April 2013. 
 
The Health and Social Care Bill 2011 which became law in April 2012 set out plans 
to transfer responsibility for commissioning the majority of health services from 

http://www.darlingtonccg.nhs.uk/
http://www.darlington.gov.uk/
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primary care trusts to groups of clinical consortia. Under this legislation, local 
authorities also played a leading part in the health system, ensuring effective local 
patient and public ‘voice,’ and overseeing public health improvement functions.  
 
During 2012/13 the PCT continued preparations to put this legislation into place by 
April 2013 and worked with local partners to look at how new health arrangements 
will fit together.  
 
With County Durham PCT, Darlington PCT worked closely with the three local 
clinical commissioning groups (CCGs), NHS Durham Dales, Easington and 
Sedgefield CCG, NHS North Durham CCG and NHS Darlington CCG to support 
them in taking on their new responsibilities and more recently with the North of 
England Commissioning Support Unit (NECS), which now provides support services 
for the CCGs. 
 
Darlington PCT also worked closely with Darlington Borough Council and Durham 
County Council to ensure a smooth transfer of responsibilities for public health and 
with the emerging Durham, Darlington and Tees Area Team of the NHS 
Commissioning Board in relation to other functions that will transfer from PCTs.  
 
Commissioning support services developed their plans and proposals for supporting 
clinical commissioning groups and other NHS ‘customers’.  
 
As the PCT’s financial management has been robust they achieved a balanced 
position on 31 March 2013 which will ensure that the CCGs would start from a strong 
financial position. 
 
The PCT also worked with their partners in the development of the new shadow 
Health and Wellbeing Board in Darlington which prepared to lead across health, 
social care and public health, and of the local health consumer ‘champion’ 
organisation HealthWatch which has been in place since April 2013. In particular the 
PCT worked closely with Darlington Borough Council on transition plans as they 
prepared to take on the lead for public health. 
 
Darlington PCT were proud of the way staff continued to deliver during what was an 
extensive period of change and uncertainty, and wished them well for their future in a 
range of new organisations which will benefit from their commitment and expertise.  
 
As the PCT approached the end of their existence, they were proud of what they had 
achieved over the past twelve years as a primary care organisation in Darlington. 
    
They delivered real achievements during 2012/13 by working with their key partners 
to meet health and wellbeing challenges. The local community and voluntary sector 
also played a major role, together with patients and the public, in shaping services 
that have genuinely benefited local residents, and will continue to do so in the future.  
 
 
Cameron Ward 
Director (Durham, Darlington and Tees) 
NHS England  
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3.  Managing transition towards the new NHS system  
As 2013/14 marks the first full year of the new system, significant progress was 
made during 2012/13 in determining which new NHS organisations would take on 
the range of PCT functions.   
 
Clinical Commissioning Groups 
 
The PCT worked with County Durham PCT to support their three clinical 
commissioning groups to ensure they were in a good position to take on their new 
commissioning responsibilities and to be formally established as NHS statutory 
bodies.  
 
The CCG configuration is:  
 

• Darlington;  
 

• North Durham  - covering Durham, Chester-le-Street and Derwentside; and 
 

• Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield - working together as localities. 
 

Applications for CCGs’ authorisation were submitted in autumn 2012 followed by 
panel visits which took place during late 2012 to explore their readiness to take on 
their new responsibilities. A key aspect of this process included independent 
consideration of key policies and documents produced by the CCGs. 

Each CCG developed a five year ‘clear and credible plan’ to demonstrate 
accountability by explaining how public money is invested and how priorities are set. 
These plans were part of the authorisation process which provided ongoing 
assurance to National Commissioning Board (NCB) and were shared with 
stakeholders to inform future discussions around the CCGs’ commissioning 
intentions for 2013/14.  

A further element of this authorisation was a 360°stakeholder survey where key 
partners were identified and asked to take part in a survey, allowing the future NHS 
Commissioning Board to assess whether the relationships the CCG had forged 
during transition with partners was likely to provide sufficient basis for effective 
commissioning. During the year all three CCGs undertook activity to seek the 
public’s views on health commissioning intentions and how health services should be 
shaped for the future. 

By February 2013, all three CCGs received official notification of their authorisation 
from the NHS Commissioning Board.  
 
The CCGs continued to be overseen by a subcommittee of the NHS County Durham 
and Darlington cluster board until April 2013. 
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North of England Commissioning Support (NECS) 

Commissioning support units (CSUs) were developed across the county to support 
the emerging roles, responsibilities and statutory duties of CCGs. They now provide 
support to CCGs in the key areas that drive successful clinical commissioning – 
strategic planning, service design and change, contract and performance 
management and business support services.  
 
During 2012/13 commissioning support units began preparations for their 
authorisation which took place from autumn 2012 onwards. All CSUs were required 
to pass the NHS Commissioning Board’s assurance process in order be awarded a 
‘licence to operate’. 
 
The commissioning support services needed to demonstrate that they were 
financially viable, and could meet customers’ needs and provide value for money.   
 
The North East commissioning support unit  - now North of England Commissioning 
Support (NECS) worked both locally and regionally to develop their service 
prospectus and to support the CCGs in developing their commissioning plans.  
 
At 31st March 2013 the NECS passed two of three authorisation stages and was 
judged as financially viable and fit for purpose.  
 
The local commissioning support service in County Durham and Darlington was part 
of NECS with shadow arrangements in place to support CCGs. The services 
continued to work with local CCGs to understand their needs through ‘relationship 
managers’. 
 
A final business plan was submitted at the end of August 2012 and received a 
recommendation at the end of October 2012 for hosting by the NCB from April 2013 
and a licence to provide commissioning support. 

Positive feedback was received from the NCB Business Development Unit during the 
process of continuous assessment which ran until the end of March 2013. NECS 
achieved the highest cumulative score and was ranked number one commissioning 
support unit in the country. 

By 31 March 2013 NECS had developed an operating model for a customer focused 
local service and agreed service ‘lines’ and specifications with input from CCGs. This 
involved reviewing and standardising processes where possible to ensure customers 
benefit from consistent and more cost efficient services, and developing a flexible 
workforce equipped to meet the varied requirements of each individual CCG. 

NECS also secured contracts to support NHS Cumbria CCG as well as providing 
services to clinical commissioning groups and CSUs across the North East, 
Cumbria, West Yorkshire and North Yorkshire and Humber.  
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Communicating with staff 

Most PCT staff have now transferred to either one of the CCGs, NECS, local 
authority Public Health teams or the NCB.   

This was an unsettling period for commissioning staff. During the year significant 
efforts were made to ensure staff were kept informed about changes happening 
including staff meetings, regular staff bulletins and updates. 

As the PCT recognised that their staff networked closely with peers and colleagues 
in other parts of the region’s NHS organistions, they co-ordinated key 
announcements with other PCT clusters in the region to ensure, where possible, all 
staff received information at the same time and on a fair and equal basis.  
 
Consultation on the structures and job descriptions for NECS and the CCGs took 
place with staff and staffside representatives and they were encouraged to feedback 
any comments. A series of workshops were held by both NECS and the CCGs which 
staff were supported to attend. 

From September 2012 onwards more clarity was gained over new receiving NHS 
organisations’ staffing structures and local staff engagement took place giving 
colleagues the opportunity to feedback on local CCG and commissioning support 
structures. Some changes were made as a result of this engagement and this 
process also helped staff understand how the new organisations would work in 
partnership in the future. 

A national HR transition process and timeframe was published and a North East 
partnership board established with staff side, union representatives and 
management to help support a smooth process and staff scrutiny over the matching 
of staff to jobs, recruitment and transfer where appropriate to new bodies. This was 
in addition to our ongoing engagement with the NHS County Durham and Darlington 
staff side. 

 

Area Teams 

Regional directors worked with PCT and SHA clusters, emerging CCG leaders and 
local government partners to plan the geographies of the of area teams (ATs) within 
each region.  
 
They are being referred to as ATs to reflect the number of office bases for local staff. 
In the North East and Cumbria are two of these teams as set out below:  
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Area Team    Current PCT Cluster  
 
Cumbria, Northumberland & Tyne and Wear  Cumbria  

North of Tyne  
   South of Tyne and Wear  
 
Durham, Darlington and Tees  County Durham and Darlington  
   Tees  
 
It was agreed that the two area teams across the North East would continue to 
maintain a single commissioning structure for primary care which was hosted by 
Durham, Darlington and Tees area team. 

Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne & Wear host the specialised services 
commissioning team who commission low volume but high cost NHS services for the 
North East and Cumbria.  

All ATs have the same core functions around:  
 

• CCG development and assurance;  
• Emergency planning, resilience and response;  
• Quality and safety;  
• Partnerships; and  
• Configuration and system oversight.  

 
All ATs have taken on the direct commissioning responsibilities for GP services, 
dental services, pharmacy and certain aspects of optical services.  
 
 
Public health 
 
From April 2013 the integrated public health team was disaggregated and staff 
transferred to Darlington Borough Council and Durham County Council. 
 
Both local authorities established public health transition groups and worked closely 
with Darlington PCT and County Durham PCT to ensure the transfer was as smooth 
as possible. There was on-going dialogue with providers of public health services to 
keep them apprised of changes and potential implications 
 
Shadow working arrangements were established with both local authorities during 
2012/13. Darlington Borough Council established a public health “receiver” group to 
ensure that the council was prepared to take on the new responsibilities. 
 
A new joint health and wellbeing strategy (JHWS) was developed for Darlington. 
 
Darlington Borough Council has taken on the lead from the NHS for some public 
health functions, co-ordinating efforts to protect health and ensure health services 
promote health and reduce health inequalities. A variety of public health services 
transferred to the local authority such as tobacco control, alcohol and substance 
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misuse, obesity and community nutrition initiatives, sexual health services and health 
checks.   
 
The Director of Public Health was a joint appointment between Darlington PCT and 
Darlington Borough Council, and took a lead role in the joint transition work. 
 
Work was on-going nationally to finalise public health budgets and local authorities 
were notified of their respective ring-fenced grant allocations for 2013/14 by the end 
of 2012. 
 
Public Health England (PHE) has set up 16 ‘centres’ around England as part of its 
structure. They provide local leadership and presence for health protection, health 
improvement and health promotion. PHE sought alignment with local authority 
boundaries, NHS Commissioning Board local area teams and local resilience 
forums. 
 
 
Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB) and Joint Health and Wellbeing (HWB) 
Strategy 
 
The HWBB in Darlington Borough Council was formalised from April 2013, although 
it previously existed in shadow form. Through this, Darlington Borough Council 
promotes the joining up of local services, social care and health improvement 
through a single integrated programme across health and social care. 
 
Joint strategic needs assessments (JSNAs) and joint health and wellbeing strategies 
were in place by October 2012 to inform the first CCG commissioning plans for 
2013/14. 
 
The Darlington Shadow HWB developed an overarching framework for a Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy which aligns partnership strategies, including a specific Health 
and Social Care Delivery Plan.   
 
A regional transition programme was established involving all NHS North East 
organisations, local authority partners, shadow CCGs, as well as staff and patient 
representatives to ensure robust arrangements were in place as the changes were 
implemented.  This programme provided oversight of the development of HWBBs 
across the North East.  
 
 
Scrutiny and ‘voice’ 
 
Health overview and scrutiny functions are directly undertaken by local authorities. 
Darlington Borough Council also has formal scrutiny powers that cover all NHS-
funded services.  
 
The local health consumer ‘champion’ organisation – HealthWatch – was in place 
from April 2013 in Darlington. HealthWatch gives people the opportunity to share 
their views and concerns about their local health and social care services.  
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National Commissioning Board (NCB) / NHS England 
 
From June 2011, the NCB was established as a Special Health Authority. The NCB 
has overall responsibility for a national budget of £80bn, of which it will allocate 
£60bn directly to GP commissioners. It directly commissions a range of services 
including primary care and specialised services and has a key role in improving 
broader public health outcomes. 
 
The NCB became fully operational on 1 April 2013, when it took on its complete legal 
responsibilities for managing the new NHS commissioning system and is now known 
as NHS England. 
 
North East teams which are part of NHS England include offender health, specialist 
commissioning, veterans’ health, children (0-5), North East Primary Care Services 
Agency and clinical networks / senates. These teams were individually hosted by 
PCT clusters until NHS England became operational. County Durham PCT and 
Darlington PCT hosted offender health.  
 
 
4.  Communicating, engaging and listening 
 
A priority during this year has continued to be communicating and managing 
relationships with stakeholders including the public, service users and carers, staff, 
clinicians and partners as the PCT moved into the final stages of transition. 
 
During 2012/13 the PCT delivered a range of support to the clinical commissioning 
groups (CCGs) to ensure they were well placed to communicate and engage with 
the local communities they now serve and worked with them to develop their 
communications and engagement strategies in preparation for authorisation. 
 
During a period of extensive NHS transition and change nationally and locally, 
Darlington PCT continued to work with stakeholders to build understanding and 
engagement around all aspects of the transition. 
 
The PCT also needed to raise wider public awareness of the changing health 
landscape and developing health systems, and what this would mean for them. The 
three CCGs raised their profiles with the public as new commissioning organisations 
and encouraged public and patient involvement.  
 
To help build this awareness, the PCT launched a monthly supplement in April 2012 
which aimed to give a range of information about current developments in health and 
social care. Copies of this supplement are at:  
 
http://www.thenorthernecho.co.uk/news/health/focusonhealth/ 

 

http://www.thenorthernecho.co.uk/news/health/focusonhealth/
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Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) 
 
PALS at Darlington PCT and County Durham PCT closed on 31 March 2013.  This 
was as a result of the abolition of the PCT with effect from that date, as part of the 
changes to the NHS.   
 
The PCT PALS team provided advice and support to patients, relatives and the 
public regarding queries and concerns about local NHS services, particularly in 
relation to primary care services. 
 
For anyone contacting PALS at the PCT after this date, a recorded message is in 
place directing callers to alternative sources of support regarding queries, concerns, 
comments and compliments. 
 
Beyond 31 March 2013, PALS within local NHS provider organisations continue to 
offer advice and support about NHS trust services. Information about the PALS 
services in local NHS trusts is available via the PCT’s website – www.cdd.nhs.uk – 
until September 2013. 
 
PALS dealt with 2,227 queries from patients, carers and members of the public 
during 2012/13 for the County Durham and Darlington cluster.  
 
 
5. Governance  
 
Cluster Board 
 
The NHS County Durham and Darlington cluster board oversaw and accounted for 
delivery throughout 2012/13, and supports the development of the new NHS system. 
These governance arrangements were in place until 1 April 2013. 
 
The cluster board was the vehicle through which the boards for County Durham PCT 
and Darlington PCT continued to deliver their statutory business. Lady Ann Calman 
was the Chair of this committee and Ken Greenfield was the Vice Chair. The cluster 
board oversaw the four new sub committees of the three shadow CCGs and the 
shadow commissioning support unit (SCSU). 
 
These sub-committees consisted of an aligned interim director and a NED who 
chaired the subcommittee. These sub-committees, working alongside local GPs, 
enabled delegation of a range of PCT cluster board responsibilities to the shadow 
CCGs.  
 
* The CCGs were no longer in shadow form from 1 August 2102. At this point the 
NEDS who were sub-committee chairs became link NEDs. 
 
Darlington PCT kept its own individual board as a statutory function, and delegated 
all other business to the cluster board; formerly the joint board. The statutory board 
met annually to approve its annual report and accounts.  
 

http://www.cdd.nhs.uk/
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NHS County Durham and Darlington Cluster Board members  
1 April 2012 – 31 March 2013 
Lady Ann Calman Chair 
Ken Greenfield Vice Chair / Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield 

shadow CCG sub committee Chair/ Link NED from 1 
August 2012* 

Non Executive Directors 
Malcolm Cook Non Executive Director / SCSU sub-committee Chair 
Annie Dolphin Non Executive Director / North Durham shadow CCG 

sub committee Chair / Link NED from 1 August 2012* 
John Flook  Non Executive Director / Darlington Shadow CCG sub 

committee Chair / Link NED from 1 August 2012* / Joint 
Audit and Risk Chair 

Jenny Flynn Non Executive Director  
Bunny Forsyth Non Executive Director (until 31 October 2012)  
Keith Tallintire Non Executive Director  
Chief Executive and Voting Directors  
Yasmin Chaudhry Joint Chief Executive  
Pat Taylor Joint Director of Finance  
Anna Lynch Director of Public Health, County Durham  
Miriam Davidson Director of Public Health, Darlington  
Mike Guy Medical Director  
Pat Keane  Joint Deputy Chief Executive  
June Tulley  Director of Commissioning Development and Transition 
In attendance (non voting) 
Debbie Edwards Nurse and Clinical Quality Advisor  
Mike Taylor  Shadow CCG Representative North Durham  
Stewart Findlay Shadow CCG Representative Durham Dales, Easington 

and Sedgefield  
Neil O’Brien Shadow CCG Representative North Durham 
Martin Phillips Shadow CCG Representative Darlington 
 
 
Cluster Management Executive  
 
The cluster management executive (CME), chaired by the Chief Executive, oversaw 
all maintenance and delivery of the PCT cluster, the SCCGs and the SCSU 
throughout 2012/13. 
 
 
Darlington PCT Statutory Board 
 
The role of the Darlington PCT statutory board was to provide local health leadership 
and appropriate governance to set standards, establish strategy, determine priorities 
and review health outcomes. The Darlington PCT statutory board met once during 
2012/13 for the annual general meeting. 
 
During 2012/13 the statutory board consisted of the Chair, Chief Executive, seven 
NEDs and three voting directors. 
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Darlington PCT Statutory Board Members 2012/13 
 
Lady Ann Calman Chair  
Non Executive Directors 
Malcolm Cook Non Executive Director  
Annie Dolphin Non Executive Director  
John Flook Non Executive Director / Audit and Risk Committee 

Chair 
Ken Greenfield Non Executive Director  
Keith Talllintire Non Executive Director   
Jenny Flynn Non Executive Director  
Bunny Forsyth Non Executive Director (until 31 October 2012) 
Chief Executive and Voting Directors  
Yasmin Chaudhry Joint Chief Executive  
Pat Keane  Joint Deputy Chief Executive   
Miriam Davidson Director of Public Health, Darlington 
Pat Taylor Joint Director of Finance  
June Tulley Director of Commissioning Development and 

Transition 
Non Voting Directors  
Mike Guy Medical Director  
Mike Taylor Director of Corporate Affairs  
In attendance  
Debbie Edwards Nurse and Clinical Quality Advisor  
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6.  Our people 
 
Equality and Diversity 
 
The equality delivery system sets out Darlington PCT’s approach to promoting 
equality, diversity and human rights for the local population and Darlington PCT staff. 
The NHS County Durham and Darlington Equality and Diversity Annual Report and 
equality delivery system stated key priorities for the year. 
 
The PCT worked to ensure that all its HR processes, including the way it recruits 
staff, were fair and transparent. All Job descriptions and person specifications were 
in accordance with Equal Opportunities, equity and fairness and all advertisements 
indicated that NHS County Durham and Darlington was working towards Equal 
Opportunities. These processes were set out in the Equal Opportunities Policy 
 
The PCT cluster was a two tick (√√) organisation demonstrating a positive attitude 
towards job applications from disabled people.    
 
 
Our staff 
 
Darlington PCT employed 34 staff with a full time equivalent (FTE) of 31.29 at 31 
March 2013. The PCT’s gender profile was 71% female and 29% male as at 31 
March 2013.  
 
 
Sickness absence 
  
The table below provides staff sickness absence data for the 12 months to 31 
December 2012, showing the total number of FTE staff days lost to sickness 
absence and the total number of FTE years available, based on the total number 
of FTE staff members within the PCT.  This equates to an average number of days’ 
sickness per FTE member of staff of 5.7 for the 12 months to 31 December 2012: 
 
      2012 2011 

 
    Number Number 

 
        

Total number of FTE days lost to sickness 
absence 
     

240 
 

194 
 

Total staff years 
   

42 
 

36 
 

Average number of days’ sickness 
absence per FTE     5.7   5.4 
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7. Performance, quality and safety   
 
The quality and safety of care was assured through formal arrangements to routinely 
monitor clinical quality and safety measures. In addition to quality assurance, there 
was an increasing emphasis on quality and safety improvement and on patient 
outcomes. 
 
Performance   
 
Reducing waiting  
 
The PCT’s commitment was to at least maintain 90% of admitted and 95% of non-
admitted patient pathways being completed within the maximum duration of 18 
weeks.  Performance was maintained above those levels during 2012/13 and the 
latest known position as at 31 March 2013 was that there were zero patients waiting 
over 52 weeks for Darlington PCT. 
 
 
Healthcare associated infection (HCAI)  
 
Reports were routinely provided to every cluster board meeting outlining progress 
against the HCAI targets.  
 
• Clostridium difficile 

 
The performance position at end of March 2013 (validated data) for County Durham 
and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust was above the trajectory and has exceeded 
the maximum for the year. Darlington PCT was slightly above the trajectory at the 
end of March 2013 with 22 cases against a trajectory of 20.  The PCT worked with 
partner trusts during the year to review every case, employing root cause analysis 
and action plans were monitored through the clinical quality and infection control 
routes.  Every effort has been made to minimise the number of cases and this 
continues to be the case with work now led by Darlington CCG from 1 April 2013. 
 
 
Choice / Choose and book 
 
The Department of Health (DH) set a national expectation during the roll out of the 
national programme that 90% of first outpatient bookings should be made via 
Choose and Book C&B.  
 
Utilisation in March 2013 was 99% for Darlington PCT, compared to 78% for NHS 
North East and 52% nationally. 
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Cancer  
 
There are several waiting time targets with regard to receiving cancer treatments. 
These include a target of 31 days from diagnosis to first treatment and a target of 62 
days from urgent GP referral to first treatment.  
 
The cumulative performance for Darlington PCT at the end of March 2013 was 
82.4%. 
 
 
Health visitors 
 
The target for the PCT Cluster for 2012/13 was to have at least 151wte health 
visiting posts in place and performance at the end of March 2013 was 156.6 wte, 
hence the target was achieved. 
 
 
Complaints 
 
NHS County Durham and Darlington received and handled complaints on behalf of 
Darlington PCT and County Durham PCT. 
 
In accordance with the NHS complaints regulations the complainants have the 
choice of complaining direct to the commissioner rather than provider of the service. 
Darlington PCT then chose to handle and investigate the complaint or pass it to the 
service provider. 
 
Number of complaints received 
 
During the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013, there were a total of 208 
complaints received across the County Durham and Darlington PCT Cluster. Of 
these: 
 
26 related to PCT functions/services; 19 were formally investigated and a response 
sent from the Chief Executive, 3 were withdrawn, 3 passed to CHC appeals process 
and 1 was outside NHS complaints procedure on the grounds of being out of time.  
 
182 related to NHS providers and were passed to the relevant organisation to handle 
with the complainants’ consent. 
 
 
Principles of Remedy  
 
In all aspects of their activity, Darlington PCT adhered to the ‘principles of remedy’ 
published by the Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman in October 2007. 
Incident and risk procedures ensured that any serious incidents were reported, and 
lessons learned and applied.  
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Information Governance and Security 
 
Information governance ensures necessary safeguards for and appropriate use of 
patient and personal information.  Performance is measured using the self-
assessment information governance toolkit, which is submitted annually.  
 
Darlington PCT achieved the minimum standard of level 2 or above across each of 
the 36 requirements against the Connecting for Health (CfH) Information 
Governance Toolkit (version 9). 
 
The PCT had no ‘serious untoward incidents’ during the year involving data loss or 
confidentiality breaches.  
 
The PCT complied with Treasury’s guidance on setting charges for information. 
 
 
Emergency Preparedness 
Darlington PCT had a major incident plan that was fully compliant with the NHS 
Emergency Planning Guidance 2005 and the Civil Contingencies Act 2004.  The 
PCT had statutory responsibilities to work with partner agencies to identify risks, 
warn and inform, exercise and produce business continuity plans. 
 
The PCT contributed to multi agency planning through active participation in the local 
resilience forum as well as multiagency exercises across a range of scenarios.  

  
 
8.  Estate and sustainability   
 
In order to deliver a high quality service, Darlington PCT ensured all premises were 
accessible, well maintained, functional and safe.  This work was managed by the 
estates and facilities team. To achieve this level of service, 2012/13 saw investment 
in both new and existing buildings. 
 
During 2012/13 the team continued to streamline the estate that Darlington PCT 
either owned, leased or rented with a view to all staff being based in fewer buildings.  
This has had a significant impact on energy consumption and business travel.   
 
The PCT also continued to deliver their environmental sustainability strategy through 
an annual plan.  
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9. How available resources were used 
 
Operating and financial review 
 
Overview  
 
During the year the PCT worked hard to secure high quality services, making every 
effort to ensure they used resources economically and with effectiveness and 
efficiency.  The Annual Accounts demonstrate that once again the PCT was 
successful in achieving their key statutory and administrative financial duties during 
the financial year ended 31 March 2013, which reflects the strong financial 
management within the organisation.  
 
This was the final year of Darlington PCT, ending on 31 March 2013.  This was a 
unique and extremely challenging year for everyone and it was therefore very 
pleasing to see the achievement of all financial targets once more. 
 
 
Objectives and performance for the year 
 
Once control totals for the year were agreed with the strategic health authority the 
PCT’s successful management of financial risks and robust financial management 
ensured that there was no deviation during the year in respect of year end forecasts. 
 
The PCT’s successful results in 2012/13 are set out in the table below with further 
detail included in note 3 of the full annual accounts published alongside this annual 
report. 
 
Headline results Target 

Met? 
 
Revenue surplus of £303k against a revenue resource limit of 
£193m 

 
√ 

 
Maintain capital spending within overall resource limit (capital 
resource limit) 

 
√ 

 
Ensure cash spending is within the cash limit set 

 
√ 
 

 
 
Other financial targets and disclosures 
 
In addition to the above statutory duties PCTs have similar responsibilities to other 
NHS organisations to record performance against the Department of Health’s better 
payment practice code published by the DH and to measure running costs according 
to definitions provided by the DH. 
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Compliance with better payment practice code 
 
The PCT was an approved signatory to the prompt payments code.  All NHS 
organisations are required to make payments to their creditors within their contract 
terms or within 30 days where no terms have been agreed.  The target is to pay all 
valid invoices within this timescale, and performance is monitored during the year.   
 
Improvements continued to be made compared to previous years although the PCT 
fell a little short of the target of 100%. Details of the performance against the code 
can be found in note 8.1 of the accompanying annual accounts.   
 
Although this was disappointing, performance must be considered in the context of 
reduced staff numbers and significant organisational change associated with the 
closure of the PCT. 
 
 
Running Costs 
 
Note 5.2 of the annual accounts provides detail in respect of running costs of the 
PCT. 
  
 
Pensions 
 
Details of the accounting for pension liabilities can be found in the accounting 
policies and Pension Costs notes in the full set of the PCT accounts (notes 1 and 7.4 
respectively).  Further details of directors’ pension benefits can be found on page 27 
of this document. 
 
 
Audit and Risk Committee 
 
A joint audit and risk committee operating across both County Durham PCT and 
Darlington PCT was in place throughout 2012/13. 
 
The role of chair of the joint audit and risk committee was undertaken by Keith 
Tallintire up to June 2012 at which point John Flook was appointed as the chair. 
 
Other members of the joint audit and risk committee were: 
 
• Malcolm Cook, Non Executive Director 
• Annie Dolphin, Non Executive Director 
• Jenny Flynn, Non Executive Director 
• Bunny Forsyth, Non Executive Director (until 4 November 2012) 
• Ken Greenfield, Non Executive Director 
• Keith Tallintire, Non Executive Director 
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External auditors 
 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP continued to be the appointed external auditors to the 
PCT for 2012/13. 
 
The cost of audit services can be found in note 5.1 of the PCTs Annual Accounts. 
 
The auditors bring an annual work plan to the audit and risk committee for approval.  
This states that the audit team is independent of the PCT and also would include any 
details of non-audit work if applicable.  When considering whether the level of non-
audit work is appropriate the PCT would consider the composition of the team (and 
whether any audit team members are involved) and the level of fees. 
 
 
Directors’ disclosure of information to Auditors 
 
The statement of responsibilities in respect of the accounts can be found in Appendix 
2. 
 
As far as the signing officers are aware there is no relevant audit information of 
which the PCT’s auditors are unaware and each director has taken all the steps that 
they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of any 
relevant audit information and to establish that the PCT’s auditors are aware of that 
information. 
 
 
Summary 
 
The PCT had an extremely challenging agenda to deliver in 2012/13 as it continued 
to focus upon securing value for money and improving the health of its population 
within available resources, whilst also supporting the reform of the health system 
contained within the Health and Social Care Bill, including the development of 
emerging CCGs.  
 
It is pleasing to be able to report that this agenda has been successfully delivered 
and the PCT leaves a stable financial foundation on which to continue the transition 
to the new NHS commissioning architecture from 1 April 2013. 
 
 
A copy of the full set of Darlington PCT’s Annual Accounts for 2012/2013 is 
published alongside this annual report.  The financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the 2012/13 Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) issued 
by HM Treasury. 
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Remuneration Report 
 
Remuneration and terms of service committee: 
The remuneration and terms of service committee was established to advise the 
board about pay, other benefits and terms of employment for the Chief Executive 
and other senior staff.  The committee was made up as follows: 
 
Ken Greenfield Chair of Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee 
John Flook Non-Executive Director 
Bunny Forsyth Non-Executive Director (until 4 November 2012) 
Lady Ann Calman PCT Chair  
Annie Dolphin OBE Non-Executive Director 
Jenny Flynn MBE Non-Executive Director 
Keith Tallintire Non-Executive Director 
Malcolm Cook Non-Executive Director 
 
The policy of the remuneration and terms of service committee on the remuneration 
of senior managers is to adopt DH guidance and Whitley Council agreements on all 
aspects of senior managers’ pay.  There were no variations to this policy within the 
financial year 2012/2013.  Similarly, there were no significant awards made to past 
senior managers. 
 
The remuneration for senior managers for the financial years was determined in 
accordance with national policy.  
 
 
Darlington PCT Senior Officers 2012/13 Declarations of Interests: 

 
Name Title Declaration detail 
A Calman  Chair Corporate Trustee of County Durham & Darlington Primary Care 

Trusts Charitable Fund. 
Y 
Chaudhry 

Chief Executive  Corporate Trustee of County Durham & Darlington Primary Care 
Trusts Charitable Fund; 
Director of Health Innovation Education Clusters (HIEC) North 
East. 

M Cook Non Executive 
Director 

Corporate Trustee of County Durham & Darlington Primary Care 
Trusts Charitable Fund; 
Appointed Governor Tees Esk & Wear Valley NHS Foundation 
Trust. 

M 
Davidson 

Director of Public 
Health 

Nil. 

A Dolphin Non Executive 
Director 

Corporate Trustee of County Durham & Darlington Primary Care 
Trusts Charitable Fund; 
Teesdale Area Action Partnership (TAP) forum member. 
Chair Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield (DDES) CCG. 

J Flook Non Executive 
Director 

Senior Non-Executive Director, NHS Professionals Ltd; 
Governor, Hummersknott School and Language College; 
Member of the General Pharmaceutical Council; 
Independent Member of the Governance, Audit & Risk Committee 
of Sport England; 
Corporate Trustee of County Durham & Darlington Primary Care 
Trusts Charitable Fund. 
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J Flynn Non Executive 
Director 

Corporate Trustee of County Durham & Darlington Primary Care 
Trusts Charitable Fund; 
Director and Company Secretary of Tow Law Community 
Association; 
Trustee of Durham Rural Community Council. 

 R Forsyth Non Executive 
Director 

Regional Clinical Director North East, Castlebeck (independent 
sector healthcare provider); 
Corporate Trustee of County Durham & Darlington Primary Care 
Trusts Charitable Fund. 

K 
Greenfield 

Vice Chair / Non 
Executive Director 

Chair of GP School Northern Deanery; 
Corporate Trustee of County Durham & Darlington Primary Care 
Trusts Charitable Fund. 

M Guy Medical Director Spouse is an independent member of Northumbria Police 
Authority; 
Spouse is a Non Executive Director of Northumbria Probation 
Trust; 
Medical Director for NHS North of Tyne; 
Corporate Trustee of County Durham & Darlington Primary Care 
Trusts Charitable Fund. 

P Keane Deputy Chief 
Executive 

Corporate Trustee of County Durham & Darlington Primary Care 
Trusts Charitable Fund. 
 

M Phillips Chief Operating 
Officer Designate – 
Darlington CCG 

Employed by NHS Stockton; 
Wife is a Paediatric Physiotherapist Employed by CDDFT. 

K Tallintire Non Executive 
Director 

Corporate Trustee of County Durham & Darlington Primary Care 
Trusts Charitable Fund; 
Director of: 
Derwentside Homes Ltd; 
Prince Bishops Homes Ltd; 
Prince Bishops Community Bank; 
Derwentside Enterprise Agency; 
Lanchester Community Investment Company; 
Social Housing Enterprise Durham Ltd; 
KT Financial Services Ltd;  
Spouse partner, Aileen Tallintire Solicitors. 

P Taylor Director of Finance  Corporate Trustee of County Durham & Darlington Primary Care 
Trusts Charitable Fund; 
PCT Governor of Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust. 
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Darlington Primary Care Trust Senior Officers Salaries & Allowances 2012/13 (Audited): 
 
Name  Title 2012/13 2011/12 
    Salary Other Benefits in Salary Other Benefits in 
      Remuneration kind   Remuneration kind 
    (Bands of (Bands of (Rounded to  (Bands of (Bands of (Rounded to  
    £5000) £5000) the nearest £5000) £5000) the nearest 
        £00)     £00) 
    £000 £000 £00 £000 £000 £00 
Y Chaudhry Chief Executive 80 - 85  0 - 5 

 
80 - 85      

P Taylor Director of Finance  55 - 60  
  

55 - 60      
P Keane Deputy Chief Executive  55 - 60  

  
55 - 60      

M Davidson Director of Public Health 95 - 100  
 

58 110 - 115    62  
M Guy Medical Director  40 - 45  

  
40 - 45      

M Phillips 

Chief Operating Officer Designate – Darlington 
CCG (from 26 September 2011 to 24 February 
2012 and then from 9 July 2012)   

  
      

K Greenfield 
Chair (until 30 November 2011), Non Executive 
Director (from 1 December 2011) 30 – 35 

  
30 – 35 

  A Calman Chair (from 1 December 2011) 
      M Cook Non Executive Director (from 21 July 2011) 
      A Dolphin Non Executive Director (from 21 July 2011) 
      J Flook Non Executive Director 15 – 20 

  
10 – 15 

  J Flynn Non Executive Director (from 1 December 2011) 
      R Forsyth Non Executive Director (until 4 November 2012) 5 – 10 

  
5 – 10 

  K Tallintire Non Executive Director (from 21 July 2011) 
       

 
Notes: 
 
The following Senior Officers were Joint posts shared with County Durham PCT, amounts disclosed above are the total 
costs apportioned and recharged to the PCT.  As these were joint posts, total costs were apportioned on a 50:50 basis 
between County Durham PCT and Darlington PCT.  The full value of remuneration earned by each individual for their 
roles with both County Durham PCT and Darlington PCT are shown below: 
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Name  Title 2012/13 2011/12 
    Salary Other Benefits in Salary Other Benefits in 
      Remuneration kind   Remuneration kind 
    (Bands of (Bands of (Rounded to  (Bands of (Bands of (Rounded to  
    £5000) £5000) the nearest £5000) £5000) the nearest 
        £00)     £00) 
    £000 £000 £00 £000 £000 £00 
Y Chaudhry Chief Executive 160 - 165  330 - 335 

 
160 - 165 0 - 5    

P Taylor Director of Finance  115 - 120  260 - 265 71 115 - 120   72  
P Keane Deputy Chief Executive  110 - 115  220 - 225 74 110 - 115   75  
 
The following Senior Officer was on secondment from another NHS organisation and no charge was levied for their 
services by the employing organisation during either 2012/13 or 2011/12: 
 
M Phillips  Chief Operating Officer Designate – Darlington CCG (from 26 September 2011 to 24 February 2012 

and then from 9 July 2012) 
 
The following Senior Officers became joint posts with County Durham PCT during 2011/12.  It is not considered practical 
to apportion their costs between both PCTs and on the basis of materiality, the full costs for these individuals have been 
charged to Darlington PCT in both 2011/12 and 2012/13, which is reflected in the amounts disclosed above. 
 
K Greenfield  Chair, Non Executive Director Joint post with County Durham PCT from 1 December 2011 
R Forsyth  Non Executive Director  Joint post with County Durham PCT from 1 December 2011 
J Flook  Non Executive Director  Joint post with County Durham PCT from 21 July 2011 
 
 
The following individuals were previously Senior Officers of County Durham PCT only but became joint posts with 
Darlington PCT during 2011/12.  It is not considered practical to apportion their costs between both PCTs and on the 
basis of materiality, the full costs for these individuals have been charged to County Durham PCT, hence no costs are 
included in the amounts disclosed above.  The total value of remuneration charged to County Durham PCT in both 
2011/12 and 2012/13 in respect of these individuals is included in the table below: 
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Name  Title 2012/13 2011/12 
    Salary Other Benefits in Salary Other Benefits in 
      Remuneration kind   Remuneration kind 
    (Bands of (Bands of (Rounded to  (Bands of (Bands of (Rounded to  
    £5000) £5000) the nearest £5000) £5000) the nearest 
        £00)     £00) 
    £000 £000 £00 £000 £000 £00 
A Calman Chair (from 1 December 2011) 35 – 40 

 
  35 – 40 

  M Cook Non Executive Director (from 21 July 2011) 15 – 20 
  

5 – 10 
  A Dolphin Non Executive Director (from 21 July 2011) 20 – 25 

  
5 – 10 

  J Flynn Non Executive Director (from 1 December 2011) 10 – 15 
 

   5 – 10 
  K Tallintire Non Executive Director (from 21 July 2011)  10 – 15 

 
   10 – 15 

   
The following senior officers were made redundant on 31 March 2013 following the closure of the PCT and the related 
redundancy settlements are reflected in the 2012/13 other remuneration figures above: 
 
Y Chaudhry  Chief Executive 
P Taylor  Director of Finance 
P Keane  Deputy Chief Executive 
 
The other remuneration figures above for P Taylor and P Keane relate solely to redundancy settlements and the other 
remuneration figure for Y Chaudhry includes an amount of £7k for other benefits with the remainder relating to a 
redundancy settlement.  
 
The full redundancy settlement for all joint posts shared with Darlington PCT has been reflected in County Durham PCT 
as the employing organisation. 
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Pay Multiples (Audited): 
 
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest-paid director in their 
organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation's workforce. 
 
The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in Darlington PCT in the financial year 2012/13 was £100 – 105k 
(2011/12: £115 - 120k).  This was 2.9 times (2011/12: 3.3 times) the median remuneration of the workforce, which was 
£35,744 (2011/12: £35,184). 
 
In 2012/13, four (2011/12: four) employees received a full time equivalent remuneration in excess of the highest paid 
director.  Full time equivalent remuneration for employees ranged from £6,351 to £178,916 (2011/12: £9,237 to 
£172,720). 
 
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay and benefits-in-kind.  It does not include 
employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.  Severance payments have been 
excluded from the calculation of the highest paid director’s total remuneration. 
 

  2012/13 2011/12 
Band of Highest Paid Director's Total Remuneration (£'000) 100 – 105 115 – 120 
Median Total Remuneration (£) 35,744 35,184 
Ratio 2.9  3.3 

 
The reduction in the band of the highest paid director’s total remuneration reflects the inclusion of a backdated pay 
increase in the 2011/12 figure which increased remuneration in that year above the ongoing level. 
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Darlington Primary Care Trust Senior Officers Pension Benefits 2012/13 (Audited): 
 

Name and Title Real Increase 
/ (reduction) 
in pension at 
age 60 (bands 

of £2500) 

 Real increase 
/ (reduction) 
in Pension 

Lump Sum at 
aged 60 

(bands of 
£2500)  

Total accrued 
pension at 

age 60 at 31 
March 2013 
(bands of 

£5000) 

Lump Sum at 
aged 60 

related to 
accrued 

pension at 31 
March 2013 
(bands of 

£5000) 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value at  31 
March 2012 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value at 31 
March 2013 

Real increase 
in cash 

equivalent 
transfer value 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Y Chaudhry  
Chief Executive  (0 - 2.5) (2.5 - 5.0) 70 - 75 215 - 220 1,416 1,426 10 

P Taylor   
Director of Finance  (0 - 2.5) (0 - 2.5) 35 - 40 115 - 120 719 731 12 

P Keane 
Deputy Chief Executive (0 - 2.5) (2.5 - 5.0) 50 - 55 160 - 165 1,150 1,154 4 

M Davidson 
Director of Public Health  (0 - 2.5) (0 - 2.5) 25 - 30 85 - 90 570 582 12 
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Cash Equivalent Transfer Values 
 
A cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value 
of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in 
time.  The benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent 
spouse’s pension payable from the scheme.  A CETV is a payment made by a 
pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension 
scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to 
transfer the benefit accrued in their former scheme.  The pension figures shown 
relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their 
total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior 
capacity to which disclosure applies. The CETV figures and the other pension 
details include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme or 
arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme.  
They also include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a 
result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at 
their own cost.  CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework 
prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.  
 
 
Real increase in Cash Equivalent Transfer Values 
 
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer.  It takes 
account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by 
the employee, (including the value of any benefits transferred from another 
scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start 
and end of the period. 
  
 
Performance  
 
Continuation of employment, under the Chief Executive and directors’ contracts 
of employment, is subject to satisfactory performance. Performance in post and 
progress in achieving set objectives is reviewed annually. There were no 
individual performance review payments made to the Chief Executive or 
Directors during the year and there are no plans to make such payments in future 
years outwith the Very Senior Management Pay Framework.  This is in 
accordance with standard NHS terms and conditions of service and guidance 
issued by the DH.  
 
Contracts of employment in relation to the Chief Executive, directors and senior 
managers are permanent in nature and subject to six months notice of 
termination by either party.  Termination payments are limited to those laid down 
in statute and those provided for within NHS terms and conditions of service and 
under the NHS Pension Scheme Regulations for those who are members of the 
scheme.  
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Darlington Primary Care Trust Exit Packages: 
 
Details of the exit packages agreed by the PCT during the year can be found in 
note 7.3 of the PCT’s annual accounts. 
 
 
Review of Tax Arrangements of Public Sector Appointees 
 
In accordance with the Treasury published PES (2012)17 Annual Reporting 
Guidance 2012/13, the PCT is required to disclose information about “off-payroll 
engagements”. 
 
There were no off payroll engagements at a cost of over £58,200 per annum that 
were in place as of 31 January 2012, nor were there any new off-payroll 
engagements between 23 August 2012 and 31 March 2013 for more than £220 
per day and more than six months. 
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APPENDIX 1 

 
 
STATEMENT OF THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SIGNING OFFICER OF 
THE PRIMARY CARE TRUST 
 
 
The Department of Health’s Accounting Officer designates the Signing Officer of 
the accounts of PCTs in England, an officer of the Department of Health, to 
discharge the following responsibilities for the Department, to ensure that for the 
year ended 31 March 2013: 
 

• there were effective management systems in place to safeguard public 
funds and assets and assist in the implementation of corporate 
governance;  

• value for money was achieved from the resources available to the primary 
care trust;  

• the expenditure and income of the primary care trust had been applied to 
the purposes intended by Parliament and conform to the authorities which 
govern them;  

• effective and sound financial management systems were in place; and  
• annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the 

Secretary of State with the approval of the Treasury to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and the net 
operating cost, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year.  

 
 
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the above 
responsibilities, as designated Signing Officer and through experience in my role 
as Accountable Officer until 31 March 2013.  
 
 
 
 
 
Signed.........................................................................Designated Signing Officer  
 
 
Name  Cameron Ward 
 
 
Date  07 June 2013 
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APPENDIX 2 

 
 
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ACCOUNTS  
 
Primary Care Trusts as NHS bodies are required under the National Health 
Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts for each financial year.  The Secretary of 
State, with the approval of the Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the primary care trust and the net operating 
cost, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year. From 1 April 2013 
responsibility for finalising the accounts falls to the Secretary of State. Formal 
accountability lies with the Department of Health’s Accounting Officer, and her 
letter of 28 March 2013 designated the Signing Officer and Finance Signing 
Officer, to discharge the following responsibilities for the Department in preparing 
the accounts: 
 
- apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of 
State with the approval of the Treasury;  
 
- make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent;  
 
- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to 
any material departures disclosed and explained in the accounts.  
 
- ensure that the PCT kept proper accounting records which disclosed with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the primary care trust 
and to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements 
outlined in the above mentioned direction of the Secretary of State.  
 
- have taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 
 
The Signing Officer and the Finance Signing Officer confirm to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, they have complied with the above requirements in 
preparing the accounts.  
 
By order of the Permanent Secretary.  
 
 
 
07 June 2013  Date..........................................................Signing Officer  
 
 
 
07 June 2013  Date .........................................................Finance Signing Officer  
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1 
 
DARLINGTON  
 

 
1.1  Darlington Primary Care Trust  5J9 
 

 
2 

 
Scope of responsibility  
 

 
The Statutory Board was accountable for internal control.  The Accountable Officer and Chief 
Executive of this Board had responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that 
supported the achievement of the organisation’s policies, aims and objectives.  The Statutory 
Board also had responsibility for safeguarding the public funds and the organisation’s assets for 
which they were responsible as set out in the Accountable Officer Memorandum. 
 
The Accountable Officer and Chief Executive was accountable to the Statutory Board and 
exercised their responsibilities for internal control through: 
 
• the setting of a risk management strategy with the Statutory Board. This provides a 

framework and direction within which internal controls were exercised and developed, 
• the cluster board (CB) was accountable for ensuring that high standards of integrated 

governance and personal behaviour were maintained in the conduct of the business of the 
whole organisation, 

• chairing the Cluster Management Executive (CME) and the Transition Management 
Executive (TME), which reported to the CB, and managed day to day activity, 

• the scrutiny role of the Joint Audit and Risk Committee (JARC), which reported to the 
Statutory Board and  

• the independent assurance given by internal and external audit, which reported to the JARC. 
 
In addition to accountability to the Statutory Board, the Accountable Officer and Chief Executive 
was also accountable to the Department of Health for the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control.  This accountability was exercised through NHS North of England.  NHS North of 
England undertakes performance management of the system of internal control duly advised by 
internal auditors. 
 
At the end of January 2013, as part of the reforms specified in the Health and Social Care Act 
2012, the Chief Executive of the PCT, Yasmin Chaudhry, passed responsibility as accountable 
officer to me, as Area Team Director - Durham, Darlington and Tees at NHS Commissioning 
Board (now NHS England), whilst retaining her position as Chief Executive of the PCT. 
 
During the year, the Chief Executive of the PCT attended monthly meetings with the SHA Chief 
Executive and other primary care organisation chief executives within the SHA area.  She was 
also a member of the Chief Officers Group which comprises the senior leaders of public sector 
partners in Darlington, who work together to improve health and health gain, amongst other 
things, of the Darlington population. 
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3 
 
The Governance framework of the organisation    
 

 
The Health and Social Care Act 2012 established and made provision for the setting up of the 
National Health Service Commissioning Board and Clinical Commissioning Groups whose 
responsibility it will be to develop, manage and evaluate processes for the commissioning of 
health care for the population of the United Kingdom. The Act is the culmination of the proposals 
outlined in Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS (July 2010), and provides specific 
direction on the abolition of Strategic Heath Authorities (SHAs) and Primary Care Trusts (PCTs). 
The timeline for the completion of this change was set at 2013, with both SHAs and PCTs being 
disestablished in April 2013. The Act also makes provision for the transfer of public health 
commissioning and associated functions into the local authorities with which the PCTs were co-
terminous. As a proactive NHS organisation we felt it was timely to review our governance 
arrangements in light of the emerging transition environment.  
 
As a statutory body, the PCT’s functions, powers and duties were set out in legislation.  In order 
that the statutory organisation continued to carry out its statutory obligations whilst in transition to 
the new commissioning arrangements, a review of the PCT’s Standing Orders, Standing 
Financial Instructions and Reservation and Delegation of Powers was undertaken to ensure 
currency and accuracy. The cluster management executive (CME) became the transition 
management executive (TME) in June 2012 in order to have a more detailed focus on phase 1 of 
the transition process. The TME reverted to being the CME in September 2012.  Figure 1 
(below) shows the structure of the board committees. 
 

 
Figure 1. 
 
Across this comprehensive range of board committees/groups within the organisation, a variety 
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of opportunities and challenges were reviewed and escalated drawing together position 
statements and providing evidence on governance, risk management and control providing a 
coherent and consistent reporting mechanism. Board committees and sub-committees worked to 
a standard agenda - Strategy, Delivery and Transition.   
 
The three CCG sub-committees were established to deliver specific, delegated commissioning 
functions of the PCTs. 
 
The CSU sub-committee oversaw the development and delivery of an affordable and viable 
commissioning support service.  The principle purpose of this sub-committee was to deliver 
functions that were delegated to it in relation to commissioning support. 
  
The TME was established to support the CB in acting as a transition vehicle as outlined in the 
shared operating model for PCT clusters to: 
 
• oversee and account for delivery; and 
• support the development of the new system. 
 
The Cluster Performance Group was established as a sub group of the TME, to oversee the 
performance management of the PCT cluster transition environment. 
 
The Joint Audit and Risk committee (JARC) oversaw all elements of governance, risk 
management and internal control.  The committee reviewed the strategic processes and systems 
of governance (including quality and patient safety), risk management and internal control across 
each statutory PCT activity, supporting achievement of the corporate objectives.  It was also 
responsible for ensuring that appropriate systems and processes were in place to maintain the 
accuracy and quality of the annual accounts in preparation for final sign-off in June 2013.  An 
audit sub committee of the Department of Health’s own Audit and Risk Committee has now been 
established, made up of former PCT non-executive directors, in order to review the annual 
accounts, along with this governance statement, prior to signing by the Accountable Officer.  
This audit sub committee will provide an assurance mechanism to the Accountable Officer of the 
NHS on the quality of the annual accounts, annual report and governance statement of the PCT. 
 
The Remuneration and Terms of Service (RATS) Committee and Charitable Funds Committee 
terms of reference were amended to reflect changes in creating the CB.  
 
The Governance Risk and Assurance Group (GRAG) was an operational group that supported 
the governance, risk and assurance agenda, acting in accordance with Connecting for Health’s 
Information Governance Toolkit requirements and to comply with the Statement of Compliance.  
As an integral part of the governance agenda, the group also supported and drove the broader 
Information Governance issues and provided the TME with the assurance that effective 
Information Governance best practice mechanisms were in place within the organisation. 
 
In order to meet the reform timescale set out in the Act, a number of work streams were 
established to manage the transition of commissioning functions from the PCTs to the new 
statutory commissioning bodies. The work streams addressed: 
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• Corporate and Human Resources; 
• Workforce Development; 
• Provider Development and Outcome and Quality; 
• Health and Wellbeing and Public Health; and 
• Commissioning Development. 

 
Governance of the work streams has been through the provision of assurance to the CME/TME 
and CB on progress, with each work stream having its own detailed risk management process. 
All serious (red) risks were also recorded on the corporate risk register. 
 
Working to the guidance set out in Handover and Closedown Guidance -Transfer 
documentation: identifying legal title in assets and liabilities and completing transfer 
documentation (2012) and Handover and Closedown Guidance - Transfer of Intellectual 
Property Rights and related Assets (2012) published by the DH, a detailed draft transfer scheme 
document has been developed which will inform the DH legal team in their development of the 
final transfer schemes for sender and receiver organisations. The development of this 
documentation has been reviewed by the PCT’s solicitors to ensure compliance with the DH 
guidelines. 
 
The work programme of the Board has involved a full refresh of the vision and strategy for the 
PCT, encapsulated in the Integrated Strategic and Operational Plan (ISOP) and the balanced 
revenue and capital budgets set for the year.  The Board has monitored performance against all 
operating framework targets and statutory duties, agreeing action as needed throughout the 
year.  They have received reports from management and all sub-committees in support of this 
work.  The board has led significant work on the changes needed to the governance and 
assurance framework to support the delivery of the transition to the new system.  A key piece of 
work involved leading the consultation on proposed changes to stroke services within County 
Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust (CDDFT). 
 
Attendance records are kept for the Board and all its sub-committees.  These are available for 
review, and confirm that throughout the year there has been good attendance at all meetings.   
 

 
4 

 
Risk assessment  
 

 
4.1 Risk management assessment is an integral part of good management practice and to be 
most effective must become part of the organisation’s culture.  The statutory board was therefore 
committed to ensuring that risk management formed an integral part of corporate philosophy, 
practices and business plans rather than being viewed or practiced as a separate programme, 
and that responsibility for implementation was accepted at all levels of the organisation. 
 
The risk management strategy and operational policy described how risks were identified and 
evaluated in a structured way.  A risk grading matrix was used to quantify identified risks within 
all directorates and commissioning activities.  Key risks were identified, consistent criteria were 
used to evaluate risks and ownership of risk was identified at a level with sufficient authority to 
assign appropriate resources to implement control measures.  There was a definition of the 
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acceptable level of exposure in relation to risk.  Action plans were developed with clear 
timescales in relation to the risks identified. 
 
A key corporate risk in year related to the maintenance of “grip” throughout the period of 
transition.  In addition new corporate risks were addressed by the Board including: 
• Management of poor performers by NEPSCA. 
• Contract stocktake exercise. 
• Retrospective assessment of eligibility for NHS Continuing Healthcare and reimbursement of 

costs. 
• Achievement of breast feeding 6-8 weeks targets for 2011/12 and 2012/2013 for Darlington. 
• Performance monitoring of NHS Health Checks programme. 
• School nursing contract with CDDFT. 
• Stabilisation of Public Health contracts. 
• Achievement of national priority indicators for cancer urgent referral to treatment waiting 

times. 
• Acute Oncology in CDDFT. 

 
A series of review meetings were held involving PCT cluster risk leads, to determine future 
accountable organisations for each risk. This information was then shared with CCG risk leads, 
who agreed which risks should be transferred to their individual registers. All risks have been 
transferred to Darlington CCG.  
 
Other accountable organisations including the Area Team and Darlington Borough Council had 
not agreed arrangements for the transfer of risks at 31 March 2013, however mechanisms were 
in place to achieve this as part of the final PCT transition work. All risks have continued to be 
managed appropriately by the PCT until 31 March 2013. 
 
4.2 There has been a continuous focus on implementing the information risk management and 
assurance framework.  There was an Information Risk Policy, which formally linked to the risk 
management arrangements and assigned information assets to asset owners, who 'owned’ and 
provided assurance to the senior information risk officer (SIRO) on the security and use of those 
assets.  Training was provided to the SIRO and the information asset owners to ensure they 
were fully aware of their responsibilities and were competent to identify and assess information 
governance risks.  The action plan to reduce the risks arising from the use of patient identifiable 
data by secondary users in accordance with Department of Health guidance and the Data 
Protection Act (1988) was implemented.  
 
Darlington PCT used the Department of Health Information Governance Tool Kit to review the 
risk and control framework for information and data.  Internal awareness campaigns were held to 
ensure that all staff were aware of their individual and departmental responsibilities for protecting 
data, both in electronic and paper format.  A review of information governance policies was 
undertaken to ensure current guidance is available to support staff in their role of protecting 
information. The information risk and data security framework and associated policies were 
assessed against the requirements of the IG Tool Kit and found to be compliant and met the 
requirements for 2012/13 in accordance with the NHS Annual Operating Framework. 
 
By 31 March 2013 NHS County Durham and Darlington (NHSCDD) published with NHS 
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Connecting for Health an Information Governance Toolkit (IGT) achieving full level two 
compliance scoring 82%.  By achieving compliance with the IG toolkit the cluster was able to 
measure compliance against the law and central guidance and to ensure information was 
handled correctly and protected from unauthorised access, loss, damage and destruction.  Our 
ultimate aim was to demonstrate that the organisation could be trusted to maintain the 
confidentiality and security of personal information.  We hope that this in-turn increased public 
confidence that ‘the NHS’ and its partners can be trusted with personal data. 
 

 
5 

 
Risk and control framework  
 

 
The risk management policy and strategy contributed to the overall vision and strategic aims of 
the organisation and supported organisational assurance.  The risk management policy was an 
integrated process by which the organisation systematically applied procedures to the task of 
identifying and assessing risk, and then planning and implementing risk responses.  The risk 
management strategy set out the management and committee structure as well as 
responsibilities for risk management and patient safety.  
 
A corporate risk register was the repository for all identified risks facing the organisation.  It 
provided a means to quantify, prioritise and manage risks.  The risk register comprised:  
 
• strategic risks derived from corporate objectives within the assurance framework, 
• risks related to key performance targets, clinical and patient safety issues, commissioning of 

services, highlighted at the CME/TME or by directorates, 
• risks related to organisational change, 
• a director assigned as owner of each corporate risk with responsibility for review, escalation 

and on-going management, 
• actions arising from reviews by external and internal audit, 
• actions arising from assessments by external bodies e.g. Care Quality Commission, 
• health and safety risks and action plans. 
 
The Governance, Risk and Assurance Group (GRAG) and CME/TME reviewed corporate risk 
register on a regular basis which included the re-grading of risk and progress against actions.  
 
The JARC reviewed the strategic processes and systems of governance (including quality and 
patient safety), risk management and internal control across the whole of each organisation’s 
activity that supported the achievement of the corporate objectives. 
 
In particular, the JARC reviewed the adequacy of: 
 
• the strategic process for risk, control and governance and related disclosure statements, e.g. 

the Annual Governance Statement and declarations of compliance, together with any 
accompanying head of internal audit statement, external audit opinion or other appropriate 
independent assurances, prior to endorsement by the CB or statutory board and the 
accountable officer, 
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• the underlying assurance processes that indicated the degree of the achievement of 
corporate objectives, the effectiveness of the management of principal risks and the 
appropriateness of the above disclosure statements, 

• the organisation’s strategic policies for ensuring compliance with relevant regulatory, legal 
and code of conduct requirements, 

• the corporate risk register and systems and processes for the management of strategic risk, 
• the policies and procedures related to fraud and corruption as set out in Secretary of State 

Directions and as required by NHS Protect, the Counter Fraud Service, 
• the emerging audit and risk arrangements being proposed by the CCG to ensure they meet 

the requirements for authorisation by March 2013. 
 
In carrying out this work the JARC utilised primarily the work of internal audit, external audit and 
other assurance functions, but was not limited to these audit functions.  Reports and assurances, 
as appropriate to the over-arching systems of governance, risk management and internal 
control, were obtained from CME/TME functions together with indicators of their effectiveness.  
This work and that of the audit and assurance functions that report to it are evidenced through 
the use of an effective assurance and risk framework.  The JARC also reviewed the annual 
report and financial statements before submission to the CB and ultimately to the statutory 
board. 
 
The JARC ensured that there was an effective internal audit function that met mandatory NHS 
Internal Audit Standards and provided appropriate independent assurance to the JARC, Joint 
Chief Executive, the CB and statutory board.  The JARC reviewed the findings of other 
significant assurance functions, both internal and external to the organisation, and considered 
the implications to the governance of the organisation.  These included, but were not limited to, 
any reviews by Department of Health arms-length bodies or regulators (e.g. Care Quality 
Commission, NHS Litigation Authority, etc.), professional bodies with responsibility for the 
performance of staff or functions (e.g. Royal Colleges, accreditation bodies, etc.). 
 

 
6 

 
Review of the effectiveness of risk management and internal control 
 

 
6.1  The risk management framework and processes were applied to business planning, the 
annual operational plan, project plans, performance framework and commissioning 
arrangements.  This approach ensured that risk management was embedded within key 
activities and integrated into everyday practice.  A simple demonstration of this is the 
requirement for all board, sub-committee and management executive papers to include a clear 
indication that the paper’s impact has been considered against an agreed list of issues, that 
include legal duties, delivery of the strategic objectives and national policy requirements. 
 
Under the risk management process, overseen by the JARC, issues were regularly reported to 
the GRAG, CME/TME and CB.  The risk management arrangements and processes were 
applied to the on-going self-assessment against the requirements of external assessments.  In 
addition, to ensure effective leadership, director objectives were mapped to the organisation’s 
strategic objectives. 
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A number of sub-groups supported the delivery of the CME/TME delegated responsibilities.  
These also supported cross functional-working and engagement with clinicians, clinical 
commissioners and staff.  
 
The CME/TME had responsibility to oversee the effective management and implementation of all 
risk management processes.  The Joint Director of Finance had delegated responsibility to lead 
the implementation of risk management and was the board level SIRO. 
 
A number of specialists provided risk management advice and guidance to the organisation in 
addition to continuous testing and reporting on the main financial and IM&T systems by internal 
audit.  
 
The CB was committed to the ethos that responsibility for the implementation of risk 
management was accepted at all levels of the organisation.  The provision of appropriate training 
was central to the achievement of successful risk management.  A mandatory risk management 
training programme was in place for staff relevant to their area of work or professional role within 
the organisation.  This included an induction process for new employees.  Guidance on the 
implementation of the risk management strategy and processes was provided to heads of 
department and managers. 
 
6.2  Performance and assurance in the transition environment - The PCT Cluster Performance 
and Assurance Framework supported the reporting relationships and escalation routes 
connected with the performance and assurance framework during the year and set out the 
arrangements for the PCT to oversee and account for delivering its legal, financial and 
performance responsibilities as described in the shared operating model for PCT clusters (DH, 
July 2011); and the NHS Operating Framework for England for 2012/13 (DH, November 2011).  
The framework outlined the themes from the shared operating model and the operating 
framework and was agreed by the accountable leads for ensuring delivery with agreed reporting 
arrangements.  The majority of reports were delivered by the Commissioning Support Unit 
(CSU).  
 
The PCT cluster held the CSU’s portfolio leads and director to account for the functions they 
undertook to deliver the outcomes aligned to the themes in the framework.  Where the CSU 
undertook functions on behalf of the CCG, as their customers, it was the CCG who owned any 
risks associated with delivery. 
 
6.3  Cluster governance and risk management of the ISOP 2011/12 – 2014/15.  The NHSCDD 
ISOP had an agreed governance route as part of the sign off process with on-going monitoring 
of individual areas within the plan being overseen by the Cluster Oversight Group (COG).  The 
COG had delegated duties and were therefore responsible for the risk management of 
implementation plans for all relevant areas. 
 
The organisation encouraged a transparent culture through compliance with the Freedom of 
Information Act (2000) and had a publication scheme.  An annual general meeting was held in 
public and minutes of meetings of the CB are available on request by the public and through the 
website.  
 
6.4  The system of internal control was designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather 
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than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control 
was based on an on-going process designed to: 
 
• identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the organisation’s policies, aims and 

objectives,  
• evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, 

and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
 
The system of internal control was in place in Darlington PCT for the year ended 31 March 2013 
and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.  I have received a Head of 
Internal Audit opinion with significant assurance in respect of the system of internal control. 
 

 
7 

 
Significant issues 
 

 
In 2012/13 Darlington PCT failed to achieve 1 key operational targets in respect of Clostridium 
Difficile cases: 
 
Our position at 31 March 2013 was 22 cases against a trajectory of 20.  The PCT’s performance 
against this key national target is reported each month at CME/TME and CB.  Concern was 
expressed part way through the year on the deliverability of this target, and as a result it was 
escalated internally, in line with the performance framework.  The PCT worked with  partner 
trusts to review every case, employing root cause analysis.  Action plans were monitored 
through the clinical quality and infection control routes.  This matter was escalated by the North 
East SHA at regular performance review meetings.  Every effort has been made to minimise the 
number of cases and this continues to be the case with work now led by Darlington CCG from 1 
April 2013.   
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DARLINGTON PCT - Annual Accounts 2012/13

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2013

2012/13 2011/12
NOTE £000 £000

Administration Costs and Programme Expenditure
Gross employee benefits 7.1 2,886 2,612
Other costs 5.1 195,465 188,373
Income 4 (6,100) (5,281)

Net operating costs before interest 192,251 185,704

Investment income 9 0 0
Other (Gains) / Losses 10 0 0
Finance costs 11 0 0

Net operating costs for the financial year 192,251 185,704

Of which:
Administration Costs
Gross employee benefits 7.1 1,625 1,223
Other costs 5.1 4,208 4,895
Income 4 (1,254) (1,388)
Net administration costs before interest 4,579 4,730

Investment income 9 0 0
Other (Gains) / Losses 10 0 0
Finance costs 11 0 0
Net administration costs for the financial year 4,579 4,730

Programme Expenditure
Gross employee benefits 7.1 1,261 1,389
Other costs 5.1 191,257 183,478
Income 4 (4,846) (3,893)
Net programme expenditure before interest 187,672 180,974

Investment income 9 0 0
Other (Gains) / Losses 10 0 0
Finance costs 11 0 0
Net programme expenditure for the financial year 187,672 180,974

Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure

Impairments and reversals charged to the revaluation reserve 58 32
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant & equipment 0 (30)

Total comprehensive net expenditure for the year 192,309 185,706

The notes on pages 5 to 32 form part of this account.
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DARLINGTON PCT - Annual Accounts 2012/13

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 March 2013

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

NOTE £000 £000
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment 12 5,589 6,063
Intangible assets 13 0 0
Total non-current assets 5,589 6,063

Current assets:
Trade and other receivables 17 2,293 2,198
Cash and cash equivalents 18 0 2
Total current assets 2,293 2,200

Total assets 7,882 8,263

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 (11,502) (13,241)
Provisions 20 (2,863) (1,186)
Total current liabilities (14,365) (14,427)

Non-current assets plus/less net current 
assets/liabilities (6,483) (6,164)

Total Assets Employed: (6,483) (6,164)

Financed by taxpayers' equity:
General fund (7,476) (7,215)
Revaluation reserve 993 1,051
Total taxpayers' equity (6,483) (6,164)

      
The notes on pages 5 to 32 form part of this account.

Accountable Officer: Date: 7 June 2013

The financial statements on pages 1 to 32 were approved by the Audit sub-committee of 
the Department of Health Audit and Risk Committee on 7 June 2013 and signed on its 
behalf by
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DARLINGTON PCT - Annual Accounts 2012/13

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY
For the year ended 31 March 2013

General 
fund

Revaluation 
reserve

Total 
reserves

£000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2012 (7,215) 1,051 (6,164)

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2012/13:
Net operating cost for the year (192,251) 0 (192,251)
Impairments and reversals 0 (58) (58)

Total recognised income and expense for 2012/13 (192,251) (58) (192,309)
Net Parliamentary funding 191,990 0 191,990
Balance at 31 March 2013 (7,476) 993 (6,483)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY
For the year ended 31 March 2012

General 
fund

Revaluation 
reserve

Total 
reserves

£000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2011 (3,169) 1,063 (2,106)
Merger adjustments (531) (10) (541)
Restated balance at 1 April 2011 (3,700) 1,053 (2,647)

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2011/12:
Net operating cost for the year (185,704) 0 (185,704)
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant, equipment 0 30 30
Impairments and reversals 0 (32) (32)

Total recognised income and expense for 2011/12 (185,704) (2) (185,706)
Net Parliamentary funding 182,189 0 182,189
Balance at 31 March 2012 (7,215) 1,051 (6,164)
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DARLINGTON PCT - Annual Accounts 2012/13

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2013

2012/13 2011/12
£000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities
Net Operating Cost Before Interest (192,251) (185,704)
Depreciation and Amortisation 474 461
Impairments and Reversals 31 0
(Increase)/decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (95) 8,826
Decrease in Trade and Other Payables (1,739) (4,435)
Provisions Utilised (160) (1,701)
Non-cash movements in Provisions 1,837 696
Net cash outflow from operating activities (191,903) (181,857)

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment (89) (337)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (89) (337)

Net cash outflow before financing (191,992) (182,194)

Cash flows from financing activities
Net Parliamentary Funding 191,990 182,189
Net cash inflow from financing activities 191,990 182,189

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2) (5)

Cash and cash equivalents (and bank overdraft) at beginning of 
the period 2 7

Cash and cash equivalents (and bank overdraft) at year end 0 2



Page 5

DARLINGTON PCT - Annual Accounts 2012/13

1. Accounting policies
The Secretary of State for Health has directed that the financial statements of Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) shall meet the 
accounting requirements of the PCT Manual for Accounts, which shall be agreed with HM Treasury.  Consequently, the 
following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2012/13 PCT Manual for Accounts issued by the 
Department of Health.  The accounting policies contained in that manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by 
the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the PCT Manual for Accounts permits a choice of accounting policy, the 
accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the PCT for the purpose of giving a 
true and fair view has been selected.  The particular policies adopted by the PCT are described below. They have been applied 
consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

The PCT is within the Government Resource Accounting Boundary and therefore has only consolidated interests in other 
entities where the other entity is also within the resource accounting boundary and the PCT exercise in-year budgetary control 
over the other entity.

Under the provisions of The Health and Social Care Act 2012 (Commencement No. 4. Transitional, Savings and Transitory 
Provisions) Order 2013 , Darlington PCT was dissolved on 1 April 2013.  The PCT's functions, assets and liabilities transferred 
to other public sector entities as outlined in Note 26 Events after the Reporting Period .  Where reconfigurations of this nature 
take place within the public sector, Government accounting requires that the activities concerned are to be considered as 
continuing operations, and so the closing entity prepares accounts on a "going concern" basis.

The Statement of Financial Position has therefore been drawn up at 31 March 2013 on the same basis as in previous years, 
reporting balances on the same basis as would a continuing entity.  In particular there has been no general revaluation of 
assets and liabilities and no disclosures have been made under IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations.   

1.1    Accounting Conventions
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, 
plant and equipment, intangible assets and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

Transforming Community Services (TCS) transactions
Under the TCS initiative, services historically provided by PCTs have transferred to other providers - notably NHS Trusts and 
NHS Foundation Trusts.  Such transfers fall to be accounted for by use of absorption accounting in line with the Treasury 
FReM.  The FReM does not require retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions (which have been accounted for under 
merger accounting) have not been restated.  Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their transactions in the 
period in which they took place, with no restatement of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector.  
Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised in the SOCNE, and is disclosed separately from 
operating costs.

Acquisitions and Discontinued Operations
Activities are considered to be 'acquired' only if they are acquired from outside the public sector.  Activities are considered to be 
'discontinued' only if they cease entirely.  They are not considered to be 'discontinued' if they transfer from one NHS body to 
another. 

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the PCT’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  The estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors, that are considered to be relevant.  Actual results 
may differ from those estimates.  The estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed.  Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of 
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical  judgements in applying accounting policies
The  critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below), that management has made in the process of 
applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements are considered to be:
● determining whether an arrangement meets the definition of a service concession within the scope of IFRIC 12;
● determining whether a substantial transfer of risks and rewards has occurred in relation to leased assets; 
● determining the carrying value of property, plant and equipment and whether there is an impairment in value; and
● determining the carrying value of significant provisions, in particular in respect of CHC restitution cases.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the Statement of Financial 
Position date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are considered to relate to the assumptions applied in the valuation and estimated remaining 
useful life of property, plant and equipment, as well as the apportionment and recharge of shared management costs and 
overheads between the PCT and County Durham PCT, over which joint management arrangements exist.

Where such critical judgements and estimates have been made, they have been detailed in the relevant accounting policy 
below or in the relevant notes to the accounts as appropriate.

1.2    Revenue and Funding
The main source of funding for the PCT is allocations (Parliamentary Funding) from the Department of Health within an 
approved cash limit, which is credited to the General Fund of the Primary Care Trust.  Parliamentary funding is recognised in 
the financial period in which the cash is received.

Miscellaneous revenue is income which relates directly to the operating activities of the PCT.  It principally comprises fees 
and charges for services provided on a full cost basis to external customers, as well as public repayment work.  It includes 
both income appropriated-in-aid of the Vote and income to the Consolidated Fund which HM Treasury has agreed should be 
treated as operating income. 

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration receivable.

Where income has been received for a specific activity to be delivered in the following financial year, that income will be 
deferred.

1.3    Taxation
The PCT is not liable to pay corporation tax.  Expenditure is shown net of recoverable VAT.  Irrecoverable VAT is charged to 
the most appropriate expenditure heading or capitalised if it relates to an asset.

1.4    Administration and Programme Costs
HM Treasury has set performance targets in respect of non-frontline expenditure (administration expenditure).  From 
2011/12, PCTs therefore analyse and report revenue income and expenditure by "admin and programme".  For PCTs, the 
Department has defined "admin and programme" in terms of running costs.

The broad definition of running costs includes any cost incurred that is not a direct payment for the provision of healthcare or 
healthcare related services.

1.5 Property, Plant & Equipment
Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:
● it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
● it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to, the PCT;
● it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
● the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and
● the item has a cost of at least £5,000; or
● Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the 
assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous 
disposal dates and are under single managerial control; or
● Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or 
collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the 
components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

Valuation
All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or 
constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by management.  All assets are measured subsequently at fair value.

Land and buildings used for the PCT's services or for administrative purposes are stated in the Statement of Financial 
Position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.  Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts 
are not materially different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period.  Fair values are 
determined as follows:
   ● Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use
   ● Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost
In accordance with the latest RICs guidance, depreciated replacement cost valuations are based on modern equivalent 
assets and, where it would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an alternative site can be 
valued.

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment 
loss.  Cost includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed 
by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value.  Assets are revalued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use.

Until 31 March 2008, fixtures and equipment were carried at replacement cost, as assessed by indexation and 
depreciation of historic cost.  From 1 April 2008 indexation has ceased.  The carrying value of existing assets at that date 
will be written off over their remaining useful lives and new fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost 
as this is not considered to be materially different from fair value.

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the same 
asset previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease 
previously charged there. A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is 
recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for 
the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.  Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit 
should be taken to expenditure.  Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported as other 
comprehensive net expenditure in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

Subsequent expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable cost is 
capitalised.  Where subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised 
and any existing carrying value of the item replaced is written-out and charged to operating expenses.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.6 Intangible Assets
Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale separately from the rest of the 
PCT’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights.  They are recognised only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the PCT; where the cost of the asset can be measured 
reliably, and where the cost is at least £5,000.  

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value.  Software that is integral to the operating of hardware, 
for example an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment.  Software that is 
not integral to the operation of hardware, for example application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.  Expenditure on 
research is not capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in the period in which it is incurred.  Internally-generated 
assets are recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

● the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use
● the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it
● the ability to sell or use the intangible asset
● how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential
● the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible asset and sell or use it
● the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

Measurement
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date 
when the criteria above are initially met.  Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is 
recognised in the period in which it is incurred.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active market, or, where no active 
market exists, at amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent asset basis), indexed for relevant price increases, as a proxy 
for fair value.  Internally-developed software is held at amortised historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in 
development costs and technological advances.  

1.7 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Freehold land, properties under construction and assets held for sale are not depreciated.

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the 
consumption of economic benefits or service potential of the assets.  The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over 
which the PCT expects to obtain economic benefits or service potential from the asset.  This is specific to the PCT and may be 
shorter than the physical life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each year end, with the 
effect of any changes recognised on a prospective basis.  Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated 
useful lives. 

At each reporting period end, the PCT checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or intangible non-current 
assets have suffered an impairment loss.  If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated to determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount.  Intangible assets not yet available for use are 
tested for impairment annually.  

A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment 
charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to 
expenditure.  Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit are taken to expenditure.  Where an 
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable 
amount but capped at the amount that would have been determined had there been no initial impairment loss.  The reversal of 
the impairment loss is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the 
revaluation reserve.
Impairments are analysed between Departmental Expenditure Limits (DEL) and Annually Managed Expenditure (AME) from 
2011/12.  This is necessary to comply with HM Treasury's budgeting guidance.  DEL limits are set in the Spending Review and 
Departments may not exceed the limits that they have been set.

AME budgets are set by the Treasury and may be reviewed with departments in the run-up to the Budget. Departments need to 
monitor AME closely and inform Treasury if they expect AME spending to rise above forecast. Whilst Treasury accepts that in 
some areas of AME inherent volatility may mean departments do not have the ability to manage the spending within budgets in 
that financial year, any expected increases in AME require Treasury approval.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.8 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 
hours.  Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand 
and that form an integral part of the PCT’s cash management.

1.9 Losses and Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health 
service or passed legislation.  By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise.  They are therefore subject to 
special control procedures compared with the generality of payments.  They are divided into different categories, which 
govern the way each individual case is handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings including losses which would have been made 
good through insurance cover had PCTs not been bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as 
normal revenue expenditure).  

1.10 Clinical Negligence Costs
From 1 April 2000, the NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) took over the full financial responsibility for all Existing Liabilities 
Scheme (ELS) cases unsettled at that date and from 1 April 2002 all Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts (CNST) cases. 
Provisions for these are included in the accounts of the NHSLA. Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all 
cases from 1 April 2000, the legal liability remains with the PCT.

The NHSLA operates a risk pooling scheme under which the PCT pays an annual contribution to the NHSLA which in return 
settles all clinical negligence claims.  The contribution is charged to expenditure in the year that it is due.  The total value of 
clinical negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the PCT is disclosed at Note 20.

1.11 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from 
employees.  The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial 
statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry forward leave into the following period.

Retirement benefit costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  The scheme is an unfunded, 
defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the 
Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to 
identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a 
defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions 
payable to the scheme for the accounting period.  

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full 
amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the PCT commits itself to the retirement, 
regardless of the method of payment.

1.12 Research and Development
Research and development expenditure is charged against income in the year in which it is incurred, except insofar as 
development expenditure relates to a clearly defined project and the benefits of it can reasonably be regarded as assured.  
Expenditure so deferred is limited to the value of future benefits expected and is amortised through the Statement of 
Comprehensive Net Expenditure on a systematic basis over the period expected to benefit from the project. It should be 
revalued on the basis of current cost. The amortisation is calculated on the same basis as depreciation, on a quarterly basis.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.13 Other expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been 
received. They are measured at the fair value of the consideration payable.

1.14 Grant making
Under section 256 of the National Health Service Act 2006, the PCT has the power to make grants to local 
authorities, voluntary bodies and registered social landlords to finance capital or revenue schemes.  A liability in 
respect of these grants is recognised when the PCT has a present legal or constructive obligation which occurs 
when all of the conditions attached to the payment have been met.

1.15 Contingencies
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control 
of the PCT, or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be 
required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured sufficiently reliably.  A 
contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote. 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
trust.  A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.  

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.

1.16 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are 
transferred to the lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The PCT as lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, 
at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the 
lease obligation to the lessor.  Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the 
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  Finance 
charges are recognised in calculating the PCT’s net operating cost.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  Lease 
incentives are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually 
assessed as to whether they are operating or finance leases. 

The PCT as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the PCT’s net 
investment in the leases.  Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant 
periodic rate of return on the PCT’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  Initial 
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.17 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the PCT has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that the PCT will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation.  The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of 
the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the 
risks and uncertainties.  Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 
obligation and the time value of money is significant, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash 
flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate of up to 2.2% (2.35% in respect of early staff departures) in real 
terms.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will 
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as a provision.  An 
onerous contract is considered to exist where the PCT has a contract under which the unavoidable costs 
of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under 
it.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the PCT has developed a detailed formal plan for the 
restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by 
starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.  The measurement 
of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are 
those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with ongoing 
activities of the entity.

1.18 Financial Instruments
Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised when the PCT becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in 
the case of trade receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are 
derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the asset has been transferred.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through profit 
and loss’; ‘held to maturity investments’; ‘available for sale’ financial assets, and ‘loans and receivables’. 
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time 
of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are 
not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less any impairment.  Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, otherwise by valuation 
techniques using discounted cash flow analysis.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset, to the initial fair value of the financial asset.

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the PCT assesses whether any financial assets, other than 
those held at ‘fair value through profit and loss’ are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and 
impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more 
events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the asset.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

Loans and receivables (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s 
original effective interest rate. The loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure and the 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly, or through a provision for impairment of receivables.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 
through the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of the receivable at 
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment 
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Statement of Financial Position when the PCT becomes party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have 
been received. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has 
been paid or has expired.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit and loss’ or other financial 
liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the life of the 
asset, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

1.19 Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
Neither the Treasury FReM nor the Department of Health's Manual for Accounts require the following Standards and 
Interpretations to be applied in 2012/13.  The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material 
impact on the PCT accounts in 2012/13, were they applied in that year: 

Standards applicable from 2013/14:
• IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements (amendment).
• IAS 12 Income Taxes (amendment).
• IAS 19 (Revised) Employee Benefits
• IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (amendment)
• IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement – this standard should be applicable for 2013/14, however, HM Treasury has 
delayed its adoption by government bodies while it finalises some adaptations.
• IAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements 
• Annual Improvements to IFRS 2011. This standard is potentially applicable to 2013/14 but has not yet been 
endorsed by the EU and therefore by HM Treasury policy is not available for NHS bodies to apply.

Standards applicable from 2014/15:
• IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
• IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
• IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
• IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (amendment)
• IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (amendment)
• IAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation (amendment)

Other standards in issue:
• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – this standard will eventually replace IAS 39. It is applicable for periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2015, but the standard has not yet been EU endorsed and therefore by HM Treasury policy is not 
available for NHS bodies to apply.
• IPSAS 32 - Service Concession Arrangement
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2. Operating segments

3. Financial Performance Targets

3.1  Revenue Resource Limit 2012/13 2011/12
£000 £000

The PCT's performance for the year ended 31 March 2013 is as follows:
Net Operating Cost for the Financial Year 192,251 185,704
Revenue Resource Limit 192,554 186,020
Underspend Against Revenue Resource Limit (RRL) 303 316

3.2 Capital Resource Limit 2012/13 2011/12
£000 £000

The PCT is required to keep within its Capital Resource Limit.

Capital Resource Limit 100 200
Charge to Capital Resource Limit 89 173
Underspend Against Capital Resource Limit (CRL) 11 27

3.3 Underspend against cash limit 2012/13 2011/12
£000 £000

Total Charge to Cash Limit 191,990 182,189
Cash Limit 191,990 182,189
Underspend Against Cash Limit 0 0

The PCT has considered the definition of an operating segment contained within IFRS 8 in determining its 
operating segments, in particular considering the internal reporting to the PCT's Board, considered to be the 
'chief operating decision maker' of the PCT, which was used for the purpose of resource allocation and 
assessment of performance.  

All activity performed by the PCT in both the current and prior year relates to its role as a commissioner of 
healthcare for its relevant population.  This includes the purchasing of services from other providers of 
healthcare, including the provision of hospital care, General Practitioner services, cost of drugs and non NHS 
care (i.e. day-to-day running costs).  On this basis, only one separate operating segment has been identified, 
being commissioning services.  An analysis of both the income and expenditure and net assets relating to the 
segment can be found in the statement of comprehensive net expenditure and statement of financial position 
respectively. 
In previous years, provider services, relating to the provision of community services in the PCT's region, 
including district nurses, health visitors and other provider services, was also recognised as a separate 
segment.  The provider services function of the PCT was transferred to County Durham and Darlington NHS 
Foundation Trust on 1 April 2011 hence is no longer identifed as a separate operating segment in either the 
current or prior year.  Refer to note 25 for further details.

Expenditure from transactions with County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust, the main provider 
of acute and community healthcare services in the area, also amounts to more than 10% of total gross 
operating costs in either the current or prior year, being £80,805k in 2012/13 (£75,860k in 2011/12).
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3.4 Reconciliation of Cash Drawings to Parliamentary Funding 2012/13 2011/12
£000 £000

Total cash received from the Department of Health (Gross) 166,826 157,140
Plus: movement in Department of Health receivables 0 2
Sub total: net advances 166,826 157,142
Plus: cost of Dentistry Schemes (central charge to cash limits) 5,511 4,855
Plus: drugs reimbursement (central charge to cash limits) 19,653 20,192
Parliamentary Funding credited to General Fund 191,990 182,189

4. Miscellaneous revenue
2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 2011/12
Admin Programme Total Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Dental Charge income from Contractor-Led GDS & PDS 0 1,453 1,453 1,337
Prescription Charge income 0 1,118 1,118 1,129
Strategic Health Authorities 0 0 0 31
NHS Trusts 0 3 3 0
NHS Foundation Trusts 1,212 786 1,998 1,935
Primary Care Trusts - Other 14 832 846 304
Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 25 25 50 0
Local Authorities 0 75 75 6
Education, Training and Research 0 361 361 328
Rental Income from Operating Leases 1 62 63 63
Other Income 2 131 133 148

Total miscellaneous income 1,254 4,846 6,100 5,281
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5. Operating Costs

5.1 Analysis of operating costs: 2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 2011/12
Admin Programme Total Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Goods and Services from Other PCTs
Healthcare 0 13,242 13,242 10,741
Non-Healthcare 2,483 911 3,394 3,257
Total 2,483 14,153 16,636 13,998
Goods and Services from Other NHS Bodies other than FTs
Goods and services from NHS Trusts 0 519 519 2,446
Goods and services (other, excl Trusts, FT and PCT) 30 31 61 158
Total 30 550 580 2,604
Goods and Services from Foundation Trusts 325 110,937 111,262 106,910
Purchase of Healthcare from Non-NHS bodies 0 20,930 20,930 17,796
Expenditure on Drugs Action Teams 0 1,765 1,765 1,743
Contractor Led GDS & PDS (excluding employee benefits) 0 6,500 6,500 6,342
Chair, Non-executive Directors & PEC remuneration 72 0 72 61
Executive committee members costs 49 0 49 43
Consultancy Services 85 0 85 4
Prescribing Costs 0 16,088 16,088 16,955
G/PMS, APMS and PCTMS (excluding employee benefits) 0 13,226 13,226 13,053
Pharmaceutical Services 0 195 195 185
New Pharmacy Contract 0 4,777 4,777 4,825
General Ophthalmic Services 0 1,071 1,071 1,110
Supplies and Services - Clinical 4 144 148 28
Supplies and Services - General 5 8 13 19
Establishment (67) 66 (1) 400
Premises 702 579 1,281 1,480
Impairments & Reversals of Property, plant and equipment 0 31 31 (25)
Depreciation 384 90 474 461
Impairments & Reversals of Intangibles 0 0 0 25
Impairment of Receivables (22) 0 (22) (89)
Audit Fees 81 0 81 131
Other Auditors Remuneration 26 0 26 36
Clinical Negligence Costs 24 0 24 37
Education and Training 11 38 49 66
Other 16 109 125 175
Total Operating costs charged to Statement of 
Comprehensive Net Expenditure 4,208 191,257 195,465 188,373

Employee Benefits (excluding capitalised costs)
PCT Officer Board Members 372 0 372 380
Other Employee Benefits 1,253 1,261 2,514 2,232
Total Employee Benefits charged to SOCNE 1,625 1,261 2,886 2,612
Total Operating Costs 5,833 192,518 198,351 190,985
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5.2 Running Costs: Commissioning Public Health Total
Services

PCT Running Costs 2012/13
Running costs (£000s) 3,185 765 3,950
Weighted population (number in units) 108,803 108,803 108,803
Running costs per head of population (£ per head) 29.27 7.03 36.30

PCT Running Costs 2011/12
Running costs (£000s) 3,282 821 4,103
Weighted population (number in units) 108,803 108,803 108,803
Running costs per head of population (£ per head) 30.16 7.55 37.71

5.3 Analysis of operating expenditure by expenditure classification
2012/13 2011/12

£000 £000
Purchase of Primary Health Care
GMS / PMS/ APMS / PCTMS 13,226 13,053
Prescribing costs 16,088 16,955
Contractor led GDS & PDS 6,500 6,342
General Ophthalmic Services 1,071 1,110
Pharmaceutical services 195 185
New Pharmacy Contract 4,777 4,825
Total Primary Healthcare purchased 41,857 42,470

Purchase of Secondary Healthcare
Learning Difficulties 847 762
Mental Illness 21,450 20,362
Maternity 4,008 3,804
General and Acute 81,299 76,731
Accident and emergency 3,140 2,923
Community Health Services 18,603 17,507
Other Contractual 16,281 14,868
Total Secondary Healthcare Purchased 145,628 136,957

Total Healthcare Purchased by PCT 187,485 179,427

Included above:
Healthcare from NHS FTs included above 110,937 106,189
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6. Operating Leases

6.1 PCT as lessee 2012/13 2011/12
Total Total
£000 £000

Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments 997 958
Contingent rents 174 174
Sub-lease payments 0 0
Total 1,171 1,132

2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 2011/12
Buildings Other Total Total

£000 £000 £000 £000
Payable:
No later than one year 396 10 406 413
Between one and five years 1,584 3 1,587 1,594
After five years 475 0 475 855
Total 2,455 13 2,468 2,862

6.2 PCT as lessor

2012/13 2011/12
£000 £000

Recognised as income
Rents 63 63
Contingent rents 0 0
Total 63 63
Receivable:
No later than one year 0 0
Between one and five years 0 0
After five years 0 0
Total at 31 March 2013 0 0

The PCT has entered into a number of operating lease arrangements, the majority of which relate to the lease of 
properties and leased cars, none of which are individually significant.  Specific lease terms vary by individual 
arrangement but are based upon standard practice for the type of arrangement involved.

The PCT has also entered into certain financial arrangements involving the use of GP premises. Under IAS 17 
'Leases', SIC 27 'Evaluating the substance of transactions involving the legal form of a lease' and IFRIC 4 
'Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease', the PCT has determined that these arrangements contain 
operating leases which must be recognised accordingly.  The financial value recognised as an expense in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for 2012/13 is £731k (2011/12:  £705k), however as there is no 
defined term in the arrangements, it is not possible to analyse these over financial years and as a result no 
amounts are included in the payable section of the table below in respect of these arrangements.

The PCT has entered into certain leasing arrangements involving the occupation of PCT properties by third parties 
under operating lease arrangements which are reviewed on an annual basis.
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7. Employee benefits and staff numbers

7.1 Employee benefits

Total Admin Programme Total Admin Programme Total Admin Programme 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Employee Benefits 2012/13 - gross expenditure
Salaries and wages 2,547 1,523 1,024 2,378 1,354 1,024 169 169 0
Social security costs 75 39 36 75 39 36 0 0 0
Employer contributions to NHS Pensions scheme 99 63 36 99 63 36 0 0 0
Termination benefits 165 0 165 165 0 165 0 0 0
Total employee benefits 2,886 1,625 1,261 2,717 1,456 1,261 169 169 0

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (50) (25) (25) (50) (25) (25) 0 0 0
Net Employee Benefits 2,836 1,600 1,236 2,667 1,431 1,236 169 169 0

No employee benefits have been capitalised during the year.

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 2012/13
Salaries and wages 46 23 23 46 23 23 0 0 0
Social Security costs 2 1 1 2 1 1 0 0 0
Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 2 1 1 2 1 1 0 0 0
Total recoveries in respect of employee benefits 50 25 25 50 25 25 0 0 0

Employee Benefits - 2011/12:
Total

Permanently 
employed Other 

£000 £000 £000
Employee Benefits 2011/12 - gross expenditure
Salaries and wages 2,065 2,016 49
Social security costs 131 131 0
Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 214 214 0
Termination benefits 202 202 0
Total gross employee benefits 2,612 2,563 49 

No amounts were recovered in respect of employee benefits and no employee benefits were capitalised during 2011/12.

Total Permanently employed Other
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7.2 Staff Numbers
2012/13 2011/12

Total
Permanently 

employed Other Total
Permanently 

employed Other
Number Number Number Number Number Number

Average Staff Numbers
Medical and dental 0 0 0 1 1 0
Administration and estates 48 42 6 45 43 2
TOTAL 48 42 6 46 44 2

Numbers of staff above (wte) whose costs have been capitalised:  none (2011/12: none).

7.3 Exit Packages
2012/13 2011/12

Exit package cost band (including any 
special payment element)

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies

Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed

Total number 
of exit 

packages by 
cost band

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies

Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed

Total number 
of exit 

packages by 
cost band

Number Number Number Number Number Number
Lees than £10,000 0 0 0 2 10 12
£10,001-£25,000 0 0 0 1 20 21
£25,001-£50,000 0 0 0 0 2 2
£50,001-£100,000 0 0 0 2 0 2
£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£150,001 - £200,000 1 0 1 0 0 0
>£200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total number of exit packages by type 1 0 1 5 32 37

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Total resource cost 165 0 165 154 517 671

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the NHS Scheme.  Where the PCT has agreed early 
retirements, the additional costs are met by the PCT and not by the NHS pensions scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS pensions 
scheme and are not included in the table.

This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages agreed during the financial year, for employees directly employed and paid for by the 
PCT.  Note: the expense associated with these departures may have been recognised in part or in full in a previous period.

The number of staff who retired early due to ill-health during the year was 1 (2011/12: 5), with total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the year 
of £88,177 (2011/12: £296,169).
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7.4 Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  Details of the benefits payable under 
these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.  The scheme is an unfunded, 
defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary 
of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their 
share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution 
scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme 
for the accounting period.  

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would 
be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal 
valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation
A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the reporting period. Actuarial 
assessments are undertaken in intervening years between formal valuations using updated membership data and are accepted 
as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2013, is 
based on the valuation data as at 31 March 2012, updated to 31 March 2013 with summary global member and accounting 
data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the 
discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual 
NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts, published annually.  These accounts can be viewed on the 
NHS Pensions website.  Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the scheme (taking into 
account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates. 
The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 
2004. Consequently, a formal actuarial valuation would have been due for the year ending 31 March 2008. However, formal 
actuarial valuations for unfunded public service schemes were suspended by HM Treasury on value for money grounds while 
consideration is given to recent changes to public service pensions, and while future scheme terms are developed as part of the 
reforms to public service pension provision due in 2015.
The Scheme Regulations were changed to allow contribution rates to be set by the Secretary of State for Health, with the 
consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer 
representatives as deemed appropriate. 

The next formal valuation to be used for funding purposes will be carried out at as at March 2012 and will be used to inform the 
contribution rates to be used from 1 April 2015.

c) Scheme provisions 
The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide only, and is 
not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met before these benefits 
can be obtained:
The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of 
the last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of 
membership. Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon 
total pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service.

With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax free lump sum, 
up to a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as “pension commutation”.

Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on 
changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year.  From 2011/12 the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) will be used to replace the Retail Prices Index (RPI).
Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are permanently incapable of 
fulfilling their duties effectively through illness or infirmity.  A death gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in 
service, and five times their annual pension for death after retirement is payable.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full 
amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer.

Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s 
approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.
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8. Better Payment Practice Code

8.1 Measure of compliance 2012/13 2012/13 2011/12 2011/12
Number £000 Number £000

Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 5,532 23,274 8,518 22,484
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 5,254 22,306 7,922 21,176
Percentage of Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 94.97% 95.84% 93.00% 94.18%

NHS Payables
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 1,968 131,056 2,199 133,558
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 1,937 129,696 2,095 132,144
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 98.42% 98.96% 95.27% 98.94%

8.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 2012/13 2011/12
£000 £000

0 0
0 0

Total 0 0

9. Investment Income
There was no investment income in 2012/13 (2011/12: £nil).

10.  Other Gains and Losses
There were no other gains and losses in 2012/13 (2011/12: £nil).

11.  Finance Costs

There were no finance costs in 2012/13 (2011/12: £nil).

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the PCT to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of 
a valid invoice, whichever is later.

Amounts included in finance costs from claims made under this legislation
Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation
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12. Property, plant and equipment

2012/13

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings

Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2012 868 5,160 886 588 7,502
Additions Purchased 0 0 61 28 89
Disposals other than for sale 0 0 (676) (43) (719)
Impairments/negative indexation 0 (58) 0 0 (58)
At 31 March 2013 868 5,102 271 573 6,814

Depreciation
At 1 April 2012 0 526 690 223 1,439
Disposals other than for sale 0 0 (676) (43) (719)
Impairments 0 31 0 0 31
Charged During the Year 0 293 78 103 474
At 31 March 2013 0 850 92 283 1,225

Net book value at 31 March 2013 868 4,252 179 290 5,589

Net book value at 31 March 2013 comprises:
Purchased 868 4,252 179 290 5,589
Total at 31 March 2013 868 4,252 179 290 5,589

Asset financing:
Owned 868 4,252 179 290 5,589
Total 868 4,252 179 290 5,589

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment
Land Buildings Information 

technology
Furniture & 

fittings
Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
At 1 April 2012 509 532 0 10 1,051
Movements 0 (58) 0 0 (58)
At 31 March 2013 509 474 0 10 993
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12. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

2011/12

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings

Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation:
At 31 March 2011 900 5,130 973 858 7,861
Merger adjustments 0 0 (205) (325) (530)
At 1 April 2011 restated 900 5,130 768 533 7,331
Additions Purchased 0 0 118 55 173
Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 30 0 0 30
Impairments/negative indexation (32) 0 0 0 (32)
At 31 March 2012 868 5,160 886 588 7,502

Depreciation
At 31 March 2011 0 258 593 286 1,137
Merger adjustments 0 0 (3) (131) (134)
At 1 April 2011 restated 0 258 590 155 1,003
Reversal of Impairments 0 (25) 0 0 (25)
Charged During the Year 0 293 100 68 461
At 31 March 2012 0 526 690 223 1,439

Net book value at 31 March 2012 868 4,634 196 365 6,063

Net book value at 31 March 2012 comprises:
Purchased 868 4,634 196 365 6,063
Total at 31 March 2013 868 4,634 196 365 6,063

Asset financing:
Owned 868 4,634 196 365 6,063
Total 868 4,634 196 365 6,063
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12. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

12.1 Economic Lives of Property, Plant & Equipment
Min Life Max Life

Property, Plant and Equipment Years Years
Buildings excl. dwellings 5 50
Information technology 0 3
Furniture & fittings 0 7

Professional valuations are carried out by the District Valuers of HM Revenue and Customs.  The 
valuations are carried out in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal 
and Valuation Manual insofar as these terms are consistent with the agreed requirements of the 
Department of Health and HM Treasury.  Full asset valuations were undertaken by the District Valuers in 
2009 as at a valuation date of 31 March 2009.

The valuations have been carried out primarily on the basis of Depreciated Replacement Cost for 
specialised operational property and Existing Use Value for non-specialised operational property.

In line with HM Treasury guidance, the revaluation of specialised operational property at Depreciated 
Replacement Cost on 31 March 2009 was based on "modern equivalent assets" rather than the "like for 
like" replacement basis used in the previous valuation. The value of land for existing use purposes is 
assessed to Existing Use Value.

In respect of non-operational properties, including surplus land, the valuations have been carried out at 
Open Market Value.  Additional alternative Open Market Value figures have only been supplied for 
operational assets scheduled for imminent closure and subsequent disposal.

To supplement the full asset valuation undertaken as at 31 March 2009, the District Valuers have 
performed a further review of all properties as at 31 March 2013, using valuation methodologies consistent 
with those applied in the detailed March 2009 valuation.  The results of this review have been reflected in 
these accounts.

The economic lives of property, plant and equipment, together with residual values, are continually 
reviewed.  There have been no significant changes to either economic lives or residual values during the 
year.
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13. Intangible non-current assets

2012/13
Software 

purchased
Total 

£000 £000
Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2012 45 45
Disposals other than for sale (45) (45)
At 31 March 2013 0 0

Amortisation
At 1 April 2012 45 45
Disposals other than for sale (45) (45)
At 31 March 2013 0 0

NBV at 31 March 2013 0 0

Net book value at 31 March 2013 comprises:
Purchased 0 0
Total at 31 March 2013 0 0

2011/12
Software 

purchased
Total 

£000 £000
Cost or valuation:
At 31 March 2011 269 269
Merger adjustments (224) (224)
At 1 April 2011 restated and at 31 March 2012 45 45

Amortisation
At 31 March 2011 99 99
Merger adjustments (79) (79)
At 1 April 2011 restated 20 20
Impairments charged to operating expenses 25 25
At 31 March 2012 45 45

NBV at 31 March 2012 0 0

Net book value at 31 March 2012 comprises:
Purchased 0 0
Total at 31 March 2012 0 0

13.1 Economic Lives of Intangible Assets

13.2 Revaluation reserve balance for intangible assets
There was no revaluation reserve balance for intangible assets in either 2012/13 or 2011/12.

There are no remaining intangible assets held by the PCT at 31 March 2013.
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14. Analysis of impairments and reversals 2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 2011/12
Admin Programme Total Total

£000 £000 £000 £000
Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals 
taken to SoCNE:
Impairments / (reversals) due to changes in market price 0 31 31 (25)
Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure (AME) 0 31 31 (25)

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals 
charged to the revaluation reserve:
Impairments / (reversals) due to changes in market price 0 58 58 32
Total impairments for Property, Plant and Equipment charged 
to reserves 0 58 58 32

Total Impairments/(reversals) of Property, Plant and 
Equipment 0 89 89 7

Intangible assets impairments and reversals charged to 
SoCNE:
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 0 0 25
Total intangible asset impairments charged to Departmental 
Expenditure Limit (DEL) 0 0 0 25

Total Impairments of Intangibles 0 0 0 25

Total Impairments charged to Revaluation Reserve 0 58 58 32
Total Impairments charged to SoCNE - DEL 0 0 0 25
Total Impairments charged to SoCNE - AME 0 31 31 (25)
Overall Total Impairments 0 89 89 32

Of which:
Impairment on revaluation to "modern equivalent asset" basis 0 89 89 7

15.  Commitments

No material impairment loss was recognised or reversed in the period for any individual asset.

During the year changing market prices have resulted in a reduction in the value of certain properties with resulting 
impairments charged against any available revaluation reserve or recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net 
Expenditure where no such revaluation reserve exists.

Refer to Note 12 for further details of the property, plant and equipment asset valuations from which the impairments above 
were calculated.

There are no contracted capital commitments or non-cancellable contracts entered into by the PCT at 31 March 2013 which are 
not otherwise included in these financial statements (31 March 2012: £nil).
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16. Intra-Government and other balances Current 
receivables

Non-current 
receivables

Current 
payables

Non-current 
payables

£000s £000s £000s £000s
Balances with other Central Government Bodies 566 0 1,343 0
Balances with Local Authorities 80 0 34 0
Balances with NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 1,430 0 2,828 0
Balances with bodies external to government 217 0 7,297 0
At 31 March 2013 2,293 0 11,502 0
prior period:
Balances with other Central Government Bodies 101 0 649 0
Balances with Local Authorities 141 0 840 0
Balances with NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 1,713 0 3,872 0
Balances with bodies external to government 243 0 7,880 0
At 31 March 2012 2,198 0 13,241 0

17.  Trade and other receivables
31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

NHS receivables - revenue 1,490 1,814 0 0
NHS prepayments and accrued income 506 0 0 0
Non-NHS receivables - revenue 128 110 0 0
Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income 160 279 0 0
Provision for the impairment of receivables (35) (57) 0 0
VAT 44 52 0 0
Total 2,293 2,198 0 0

Total current and non current 2,293 2,198

17.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired 31 March 2013 31 March 2012
£000 £000

Total at 31 March 2012 1,454 24
By three to six months 0 1
By more than six months 0 0
Total 1,454 25

17.2  Provision for impairment of receivables 2012/13 2011/12
£000 £000

Balance at 1 April (57) (146)
Decrease in receivables impaired 22 89
Balance at 31 March (35) (57)

The PCT has reviewed all receivables to determine whether an impairment in value is required.  In determining the recoverability of a 
receivable, the PCT considers any change in the credit quality of the receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the 
reporting date.  The overall level of credit risk is considered to be relatively low due to the proportion of the customer base which is 
comprised of NHS bodies and other central and local government bodies.

Current Non-current

The great majority of trade is with other NHS bodies, including other Primary Care Trusts as commissioners for NHS patient care 
services.  As Primary Care Trusts are funded by Government to buy NHS patient care services, no credit scoring of them is considered 
necessary.
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18. Cash and Cash Equivalents
31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2 7
Net change in year (2) (5)
Balance at 31 March 0 2

Made up of
Cash with Government Banking Service 0 2
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 0 2
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of cash flows 0 2

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000

NHS payables - revenue 647 259 0 0
NHS accruals and deferred income 3,335 4,262 0 0
Family Health Services (FHS) payables 3,766 4,512 0 0
Non-NHS payables - revenue 377 124 0 0
Non-NHS accruals and deferred income 3,352 4,084 0 0
Tax 12 0 0 0
Other 13 0 0 0
Total 11,502 13,241 0 0

Total payables (current and non-current) 11,502 13,241

19. Trade and other payables Current Non-current

The PCT held £nil cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2013 on behalf of patients (31 March 2012: £nil). 
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20. Provisions

Total

Pensions 
Relating to 
Other Staff

Legal 
Claims

Continuing 
Care Other

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Balance at 1 April 2012 1,186 3 79 499 605
Arising During the Year 2,083 0 19 2,064 0
Utilised During the Year (160) (3) (33) (3) (121)
Reversed Unused (246) 0 (23) 0 (223)
Balance as at 31 March 2013 2,863 0 42 2,560 261

Expected Timing of Cash Flows:
No Later than One Year 2,863 0 42 2,560 261

Pensions relating to other staff

Legal Claims

Continuing Care

Other

This represents a provision for expected costs in respect of the removal and replacement of PIP implants.

21. Contingencies

There were no contingent assets or liabilities at 31 March 2013 (31 March 2012: £nil).

£300k is included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority at 31 March 2013 in respect of clinical negligence 
liabilities of the PCT (31 March 2012: £320k).

This represents amounts due to NHS Trusts reimbursing them for future year cash payments to the Pensions Agency in 
respect of pensions paid to other staff of the NHS Trust, all of which has been settled in the year.

This represents sums due to NHS Trusts reimbursing them for future year cash payments in respect of employer liability 
claims.

This represents estimated amounts due in respect of Continuing Care restitution cases, for which the timing and 
amounts of annual payments is uncertain.  The significant increase in this provision during the year reflects the 
increase in the number of claims received following the introduction of national deadlines for retrospective claims and 
related publicity campaigns.
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22. Financial Instruments

Financial risk management

Currency risk

Interest rate risk

Credit Risk

Liquidity Risk

22.1 Financial Assets Loans and 
receivables

Total

£000 £000

Receivables - NHS 1,996 1,996
Receivables - non-NHS 137 137
Cash at bank and in hand 0 0
Other financial assets 0 0
Total at 31 March 2013 2,133 2,133

Receivables - NHS 1,814 1,814
Receivables - non-NHS 105 105
Cash at bank and in hand 2 2
Other financial assets 17 17
Total at 31 March 2012 1,938 1,938

22.2  Financial Liabilities Other Total 
£000 £000

NHS payables 647 647
Non-NHS payables 4,155 4,155
Other financial liabilities 9,563 9,563
Total at 31 March 2013 14,365 14,365

NHS payables 4,521 4,521
Non-NHS payables 4,636 4,636
Other financial liabilities 5,270 5,270
Total at 31 March 2012 14,427 14,427

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the 
period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.  As the cash requirements of the 
PCT are met through Parliamentary Funding, financial instruments play a more limited role in creating risk that 
would apply to a non-public sector body of a similar size.  The majority of financial instruments relate to contracts 
for non-financial items in line with the PCT’s expected purchase and usage requirements and the PCT is therefore 
exposed to little credit, liquidity or market list.

The PCT is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being 
in the UK and Sterling based. The PCT has no overseas operations. The PCT therefore has low exposure to 
currency rate fluctuations.

PCTs are not permitted to borrow.  The PCT therefore has low exposure to interest-rate fluctuations.

Because the majority of the PCT’s income comes from funds voted by Parliament the PCT has low exposure to 
credit risk.

The PCT is required to operate within limits set by the Secretary of State for the financial year and draws down 
funds from the Department of Health as the requirement arises.  The PCT is not, therefore, exposed to significant 
liquidity risks.



Page 31

DARLINGTON PCT - Annual Accounts 2012/13

23. Related party transactions

Darlington Primary Care Trust is a body corporate established by order of the Secretary of State for Health.

Name Title  Possible Related Party

Payments to 
Related Party

Receipts 
from 

Related 
Party

Amounts 
owed to 

Related Party 
31/03/13

Amounts 
due from 
Related 

Party 
31/03/13

£ £ £ £

County Durham PCT 3,607,431 860,958 1,135,151 496,328

P Taylor Director of Finance
PCT Governor of Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust 2,427,034 2,462 22,636

M Guy Medical Director North Tyneside PCT 12,500,847 39,970
Newcastle PCT 47,791 12,000 3,643

M Phillips
Chief Operating Officer - 
Darlington CCG

County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation 
Trust 80,804,664 1,429,429 1,939,614 1,429,429
Stockton-on-Tees Teaching PCT 3,000

M Cook Non Executive Director
Governor of Tees Esk and Wear Valley NHS 
Foundation Trust 13,744,904 48,834

R Forsyth Non Executive Director Castlebeck 176,217

Strategic Health Authorities
NHS Foundation Trusts
NHS Trusts
NHS Litigation Authority
NHS Business Services Authority

2011/12 Prior Year Comparators

Name Title  Possible Related Party

Payments to 
Related Party

Receipts 
from 

Related 
Party

Amounts 
owed to 

Related Party 
31/03/12

Amounts 
due from 
Related 

Party 
31/03/12

£ £ £ £

County Durham PCT 4,480,725 274,230 570,996 11,232

P Taylor Director of Finance
PCT Governor of Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust 3,193,161 45,217

M Guy Medical Director Northumberland Care Trust 11,400
North Tyneside PCT 9,011,950 31,584
Newcastle PCT 929 10,000 929

M Cook Non Executive Director
Governor of Tees Esk and Wear Valley NHS 
Foundation Trust 14,437,980 278,583

R Forsyth Non Executive Director Castlebeck 120,217

During the year Darlington PCT has undertaken material transactions with County Durham PCT, over which joint management arrangements exist, 
including a Cluster Board which governs both County Durham PCT and Darlington PCT, as well as with the following Board Members or members of the 
key management staff or parties related to them:

All members of key management staff

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party.  During both the current and prior year, Darlington PCT has had a significant number of material 
transactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.  These entities are:

In addition, the PCT has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies in both 
the current and prior year. Most of these transactions have been with Darlington Borough Council and Durham County Council, together with other local 
authorities.

During 2011/12 Darlington PCT undertook material transactions with County Durham PCT, over which joint management arrangements exist, including a 

All members of key management staff
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24. Losses and special payments

There were no cases which were individually in excess of £250,000.

25. Transforming Community Services

26. Events after the reporting period

There were no losses cases identified in either 2012/13 or 2011/12.

One special payment was made in 2012/13 with a total value of £47,071 (2011/12:  one special payment with a total value of 
£10,000).  

The National Transforming Community Services (TCS) programme was launched in January 2009 as an overarching 
programme to support the development of community services. A key element of this programme was the requirement that 
PCT’s separate commissioning of services from provision by April 2011.

In line with this policy, the transfer of the Community Services arm hosted by Darlington PCT, County Durham and 
Darlington Community Health Services (CDDCHS), to County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust (CDDFT) as 
the preferred management partner, was agreed on 1 April 2011.

This involved the transfer of over 2,600 CDDCHS staff to CDDFT on 1 April 2011, together with certain items of property, 
plant and equipment and intangible assets relating to CDDCHS, which were transferred by means of an adjustment to the 
opening balances at 1 April 2011, as highlighted in notes 12 and 13.

The remaining assets and liabilities of the PCT at 31 March 2013 are to be transferred to the receiver body with relevant 
future commissioning responsibilities with effect from 1 April 2013, including the Department of Health, clinical 
commissioning groups, NHS England and NHS Property Services.

The main functions carried out by Darlington Primary Care Trust in 2012/13 are to be carried out in 2013/14 by a number of 
public sector bodies, including Darlington clinical commissioning group, NHS England, Darlington Borough Council and 
Public Health England.

Detailed guidance on the services to be commissioned by each organisation has been published separately by the NHS 
Commissioning Board (now NHS England), but in general the clinical commissioning group will be responsible for 
commissioning the majority of health services for their patients which were previously commissioned by the PCT with the 
exception of:

 - certain specialised services, public health services and primary care services commissioned directly by NHS England; 
 - health improvement services commissioned by Darlington Borough Council; and 
 - health protection and promotion services provided by PHE.

Certain items of property, plant and equipment have also transferred to NHS Property Services and other entities including 
clinical commissioning groups, on 1 April 2013.  These were considered operational at the year-end and so have not been 
impaired in the PCTs accounts.  It is for the successor body to consider whether, in 2013/14, it is necessary to review these 
for impairment.
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